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Tinna Overseas Limited

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the Twenty Third
Annuai General Meeting of the Shareholders of
Tinna Overseas Ltd. will be held on Thursday, the
30" September, 2010 at 9.00 AM. at 18 South
Drive Way, DLF Farms, Chhattarpur, New Delhi
110074 to transac! the tollowing buisiness:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

01.

02.

03.

04.

To receive, consider and adopt the audited
Balance Sheet as at 318! March, 2010, and
Profit & Loss Account for the year ended on
that date together with the reports of Directors
and Auditors thereon.

To appoint a Director in place of Shri Kapil
Sekhri who relires by rotation and being
eligible offers himself for re- appointment.

To appoint a Director in place of Shri Anil
Kumar Grover who retires by rotation and
being eligible offers himself for re-
appoiniment.

To appoint M/s Rawla & Co., Chartered
Accountants, New Delhi, the retiring Auditors
as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold
office from the conciusion of this Annual
General Meeting to the conclusion of the next
Annual General Meeting at a remuneration to
be tixed by the Board of Directors.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

05.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or
without modification(s) the following resolution
as Special Resolution :

“Resalved That pursuant to the provisions of
Section 198, 269, 308, 310, 311 read with
Schedule XlIl & other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 1856(including any
statutory modification or re-enactment thereof,
for the time being in force) & subject 1o such
other approvals/sanctions, if any, Shri
Bhupinder Kumar be and is hereby

re-appointed as Whoie Time Director we.f. 013
Septernber, 2010 for a period of three years
on the following terms & conditions :

Pericd of Re-appointment : Three years w.e.f.
Q1% September, 2010

Remuneration: Shri Bhupinder Kumar shall
be entitled for/given overall remuneration of
5% of net profits of the Company calculated
in terms of the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 for the financial year
ending 31% March, 2011 and for subsequent
flinancial years.

Further Shri Bhupinder Kumar, Whole Time
Director may be paid remuneration either by
way of a specified monthly remuneration or
in lump sum at year end or partly by one way
and partly by the other.

Telephone : Provision of mohile phone/
telephone at the residence will not be
considered as perquisite, subject to the
provisions of the Income Tax Rules, but
personal long distance calls shall be billed by
the Campany.

Conveyance: Provision of conveyance for
official purpose and the same shall not be
considered as perquisite as permissible under
the Income Tax Rules.

Resolved Further That Shri Bhupinder
Kumar shall be entitled to other benefits/
perquisites like expenditure on gas,
electricity, water, re-imbursement of medical
benefits for self & family, LTA for self & family,
club fee, personal accident insurance & medi-
claim insurance & other benefits in terms of
the rules of the Company and these benefits/
perquisites shall be evaluated as per the
Income Tax Rules, wherever applicable.
However, the overall remuneration shall not
exceed the limils as stated above.

Resolved Further That in case there are no
profits or profits are inadequate in the
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Tinna Overseas Limited

Company during the currency of the tenure
of Shri Bhupinder Kumar then his
remuneration shall be governed by Schedule
Xl of the Act as amended from time to lime
or he shali be given remuneration as
sanctioned/approved by the Central
Governmaril as applicable at that point of time.

Resolved Further That the terms of conditions
of the appointmentire-appointment /
remuneration may be altered and varied so
as not to exceed the limils specified herein
above or in terms of Schedule Xl of the
Companies Act, 1856 or any amendments
hereto or by other concerned authorities and
as may be agreed to between the Board of
Directors and Shri Bhupinder Kumar.”

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Tinna Overseas Limited

Place: New Delhi

Dated: 29™ July, 2010

Rahul Garg
Company Secretary

NOTES

A member entitled to attend and vote at the
meeling is entitled tc appoint a proxy to attend
and vote instead of himself and such proxy
need not be a member.

The proxy in order to be effective must be
todged at the Regd. Office of the Compeny
at No. 6, Sultanpur (Mandi Road}, Mehrauli,
New Delhi-110030 at least 48 hours before
the commencement of the meeting.

The explanatory statement pursuant to Seclian
173(2) of the Companies Act, 1956 in respecl
of Special Business is annexed hereto

Members are requested to bring their copies
of the Annual Report to the meeting.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer
Books of the Company remained close from
Saturday the 25" September, 2010 to
Wednesday the 29" September, 2010 (both
days inclusive).

Members who are holding Company's shares
in dematerialization form are requested to
bring details of their depository A/c Number
for identifications.

Members holding equity shares in physical
form are hereby requested to notify change ot
their address, if any, quoting folioc number.

(2)



Tinna Overseas Limited

Explanatory Statement
Pursuant to Section 173(2)
of the Companies Act, 1956

Item No. 5.

Shr Bhupinder Kumar is the principal promoter of
your Company. He is a graduate. He is aiso Director/
Chairman of other group companies. He is visionary
leader. Under his leadership, the Company has
achieved enviable growth. He has been the driving
force in successful implementation of various
initiatives and strategies, which positioned the
Company to this level. He is 59 years old having
vast and varied experience of the business/industry
over 39 years. Your Directors consider that his re-
appointment as Whele Time Director shall be of
immense help to the Company & further he be
suitably rewarded in terms of profitability of the
Company in terms of the provisions of the Act and
accordingly proposed for re-appointment/
remuneration as provided in the resolution.

The principal terms of appointment/ remuneration
of Shyri Bhupinder Kumar are as under :

(i). Period of Re-appointment : Three years w.e.f.
01 September, 2010

(i) Remuneration: Shri Bhupinder Kumar shali
be entitled for/given overall remuneration of
5% of net profits of the Company caiculated in
terms of the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 for the financial year
ending 318t March, 2011 and fer subsequent
financial years.

(iii) Shri Bhupinder Kumar may be given

remuneration either by way of specified

monthly remuneraticn or in lump sum in year

end or partly by one way and partly by the

other way.

({iv) Telephone : Provision of mobile phone/
telephone at residence will not be considered
as perquisite, subject to the provisicns of the

Income Tax, but perscnal long distance calls
shall be billed by the Company.

{v) Conveyance : Provision of conveyance for
official purposes and the same shall not be
considered as perquisite subject to the
provisions of the Income Tax.

(vi) ShriBhupinder Kumar Shall be entitled to other
benefits/perquisites like expenditure on gas,
electricity, water, re-imbursement of medical
benefits for self & family, LTA for seif & family,
club fee, personal accident insurance & medi-
claim insurance & other benefits in terms of
the rules of the Company and these benefits/
perquisites shall be evaluated as per the
Income Tax Rules, wherever applicable.
However, the overall remuneration shall not
exceed the limits as stated the resolution.

(vii)In case there are nc profits or profits are
inadequate in the Company during the
currency of the tenure of Shri Bhupinder Kumar
then his remuneration shall be governed by
Schedule Xli| of the Act as amended from time
to time or he shall be given remuneralion as
sanctioned/approved by the Central
Government as applicable at that point of time

(viii) Shri Bhupinder Kumar shalil be liable to retire
by rotation.

(ix) Shri Bhupinder Kumar shali not be paid sitting
feas for attending the meetings of the Board of
Directors and/ or committees thereof,

None of the Directors except, S/Shri Bhupinder
Kumar & Kapil Sekhri, is directly or indirectly
interested in the proposed Special Resolution at
Item No.5 of the Notice and the Board recommends
your acceptance thereof in the interest of the
Company.

This may aiso be treated as an abstract of the terms
of appoeintment of Shri Bhupinder Kumar in terms
of Section 302 of the Companies Act, 1956.

(3)




Tinna Overseas Limited

DIRECTORS® REPORT

The Members

Your Directors are pleased to present the 23 Annual
Report and the Audited Statement of Accounts of the
Company for the financial year ended on 31 March,
2010 (01-04-2009 to 31-03-2010)

FINANCIAL RESULYS
(¥ in lacs)

2002-2010  2008-2009
Total Income 15819.65 847217
Profit befere Interest, 679.02 1180.12
Depreciation & Taxation
Interest 119.49 64.22
Depreciation 98.38 96.01
Tax 125.54 157.43
Profit/(loss) after interest, 335.81 872.46
Depreciation & taxation
Reserves & Surplus 28168.07  2480.46

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

During the year under review, the Company achisved a
levei of total income to the tune of T15819.85 lacs as
against ¥ 5472.17 facs in the previous year. This year
the Campany eamed a profit of ¥ 335.61 lacs as against
a profit of T 872.46 lacs in the previous year.

During the year under review in the bitumen division the
Company did a business of ¥ 7410.77 lacs as against
a business of ¥ 5455.62 lacs in the previous vear. In this
division, during the year under review the Company
carned a profit of ¥ 318.93 lacs as against a profit of
¥ 872.60 jacs in the previous year.The increase in
turnover is due to sale of Modified Bitumen. The reduction
in profit mainly resulted due to lowering of profit margins
& the Company could get iesser direct business from
refineries & could get business as sub contractor which
also resulted in lowering of profit margins. -

The Company has been making continuous efforts to
get the direct business from refineries & has succeeded
to a great extent & is hopeful io maintain profitability in
future & even perform better in the coming years.

During the year the Company has also undertaken trading
of Soyabean meal to the extent of ¥ 8302.73 lacs and
earned a profit of ¥ 16.68 lacs.

The plantation of Jatropha activity is in early stages but
the Company believes it has a greal potential in the
coming years.

The Company is also contemplating to undertake
business of bitumen emulsion. The Company sees a great
scope in these business activities. As with the help of
bilumen emulsion even roads can be repaired/maintained
in rainy / winter season wiich wiil be a positive step in
India.

As backward integraticn Company is also contemplating
to undertake manufacturing of Crumb Rubber.

The main thrust of the Company is on bitumen related
activities wherein the Company finds a great potential,
The Company’s developed Bitumen Madifier, trade named
“TBM SUPER” which substantially improves the vital
properties of Bitumen and in turn quality and life of roads
as evidenced by various reputed Government/ other
laboratory reports such as; Central Road Research
Institute {CRRI), New Delhi, Highway Research Station,
Chennai, Gujrat Engineering Research Institute, Vadodra,
Indian Institute of Technology. Kharagpur & Bangalore
University, Department of Civil Engineering, Bangalore
efc., etc., after being test launched/ successiul test tracks
being undertaken by them at various places. Various
tracks have been laid with the use of TBM at Delhi,
Haryana, Border Roads at Rajasthan J&K, Mizoram, Leh,
Arunachal Pradesh and many other places and they have
been performing satisfactorily. National Highway Authority
has been using our product after being satisfied on
number of successful trial runs. Various other Gowt
authorities/ bodies have/ have been recommending the
use of TBM in their projects/proposed projects. The
Company has also tied up with the refineries of Chennai
Petroleum Corporation Ltd. {CPCL), Indian Qil Corporation
Ltd. {IOCL) Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Ltd. (HPCL),
Bharat Petroleum Ceorporation Lid. (BPCL) & Mangalore
Refinery & Petrochemicals Limited (MRPL) far supply of
bitumen modifier to manufacture modified bitumen at their
refingries level and in the process has already set up
manufacturing faciiities at Chennai, Mumbai & Panipat to
cater the needs of [OCL, CPCL, HPCL & BPCL. The
Company has alse set up its manufacturing facilities at
Silvassa {Dadra Nagar Haveli) and Kalamb {Himacha}
Pradesh}. The Company has further setup/in the process
of sefting up its manufacturing facilities at Mangalore,
Haldia & Mathura to meet theif requirements. It is expected
that the Company would be able to further improve its
position in the coming years.

CLB MATTER/ ORDER

There arose a dispute/mis-understanding among the
family directors/ promoters and the pefitions were filed
before the Hon'ble Company Law Board, New Delhi. After
numbper of hearings the Hon’ble Company Law Board,
New Delhi, vide its Order dated ooth June, 2009 (effective
from 05t January, 2009) directed for division in group
business/activities in the overall interest of the group and
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Tinna Overseas Limited

public at large. The necessary steps have been taken in
conformity with the CLB Crder.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION & FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
& OUTGO

Information in accordance with the provisions of Section
217 (1) (e) of the Companies Act, 1956 read with the
Companies {Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of
Board of Directors) Rules, 1988 as amended, regarding
conservation of energy and technology absorption &
foreign exchange earnings & outgo is given in the
annexure forming part of this Report.

FIXED DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted deposits from the public.
Hence, the provisions of Section 58A of the Companies
Act, 1956 and the Rules made under the Companies
{Acceptance of Deposits), Rules, 1975, as amended with
regard to the deposils accepted from the public are not
applicable.

AUDITORS

M/s Rawla & Co., Chartered Accountants, New Delhi
retire at the conglusion of this Annual General Meeting &
being eligible have offered themselves for re- appointment.

AUDITORS' REPORT

The Auditors’ observations on the accounts have been
extensively dealt with in the notes & further necessary
corrective actions are being taken. The Directors wish to
further state that the Company is continuously making
efforts for further streamlining/improving the internal audit
and other systemns.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirerments under Section 217(2AA) of

the Companies Act,1956 with respect to Directors’

Responsibility Staterent, it is hereby confirmed:

(i) that in the preparation of the annual accounts for
the financial year ended 31" March, 2010, the
applicable accounting stanciards have been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material
departures;

{ii) that the Directors have selected such accounting
policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that were reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial
year and of the profit or loss of the Company for the
year under review.

(i) that the Directors have taken proper and sufficient
care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956 for safeguarding the assets of

the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and other irregularities;

(iv) that the Directors have prepared the accounts for
the financial year ended 31" March, 2010, ona’
going concern basis'.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The Company has not paid any remuneration attracting
the provisions of the Companies (Particulars of
Employees) Rules, 1975 read with section 217 (2A) of
the Companies Act, 1958 as amended. Hence, no
information is required to be appended to this report.

DIRECTORS
Shri Kapil Sekhri & Shri Anil Kumar Grover retire by rotation
and being eligible offer themselves for re-appointment.

The resignations of 8/8hri Gaurav Sekhri & D.PL. Nanda
from directorship have been accepted w.e.f, 26" July,
2010. The Board places on record its appreciation for the
valuable contribution made by them during their tenure
as Director of the Company.

DELISTING

The Company has requested for voluntary delisting of
equity shares from Delhi Stock Exchange Association
Limited (DSE), The Cafcutta Stock Exchange Association
Limited (CSE) & The Stock Exchange Ahmedabad (ASE)
in 2003. The equity shares are yet to be delisted from
these exchanges. But, even after delisting from these
exchagtges the equity shares will continue to be listed at
the Mumbai Stock Exchange (BSE) having nation wide
terminals. :

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Pursuant to Clause 48 of the listing agreement (a)
Management Discussion & Analysis Report (b} Report
on Corporate Governance (¢} the certificate on
Corporate Governance are given in the annexure to
this report.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors wish to place on record their appreciation
for the assistance and co-operation extended to the
Company by the Banks/ Govi. Authorities and other
agencies. The Directors atso thank all the employees of
the Company al every lgvel for their valuable services
and continued support during the year.

For & on behalf of the Board
Piace : New Delhi
Dated: 29" July, 2010

Anil Kumar Grover
Director

' Bhupinder Kumar
Chairman
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ANNEXURES TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT

information as per Section 217(1)}{e} read with the
Companies {Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of
Board of Directors) Rules, 1988 and forming part of
the Directors’ Repori for the year ended on 31°
March, 2010.

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

{a)

{v)

{c)

(d)

Energy conservation measures taken: The
imported and indigenous machinery is of latest
technology and conserving energy to the
maximum.

Additional investments & proposals, if any, being
implemented for reduction of consumption of
energy: During the year the Company has
made additions in the machinery o the extent
of Rs. 191.00 lacs which are of improved
technotogy.

Impact of the measwres at (a) and (b) above
tor reduction of energy consumgption and
conseguent impact on the cost of production
of goods: The machines used by the Company
are of latest technology and conserving energy
to the maximum. The Company further
continues to improve produstivity by employing
trainred manpower for efficient utilization of
machinery.

Not applicable.

FORM FOR DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH
RESPECT OF TECHNOLGGY ABSORPTION

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT (R & D)

{a)

Specific areas in which R & D is being carried
out by the Company: The Company is making
continuous efforts to improve the quality of
bitumen modifier and other related products.

Benefits derived as g result of above R & D.
— Products developed are of better quality.
— This has resulied in reduction in cost.

{¢) Future plan of action: Continucus efforts are

(d)

being made to improve the quality and reduce
the cost so as to expand cur market.

Expenditure on R & D: The Company incurred
¥ 9.49 iacs on R & D during the year.

2. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION &
INNOVATION

(2]

(b)

{e)

The Company is using latest tachnology/
machinery. Further the Company interacts with
parties/buyers for product improvement.

Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts
e.g. product improvement, cost reduciion,
product development, import substitution ets:
The results are encouraging.

Use of latest developed fechnigues has
enabied the Company to improve quality of its
products and productivity of factory siaff.

Nat applicable.

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & QUTGO

1.

Activities relating to export initiatives taken to
increase exports, development of new export
markais for products and services, and export
ptan: The Company has abandoned the shoe
business and not very keen in expor business.

2. Total Foreign Exchange Used and Earned
T in lacs)

(a) Total Foreign Exchange Used 528.06

(b} Tetal Foreign Exchange Earned il

Far & on Behalf of the Board of Directors
for Tinna Overseas Limited

Place ; New Delhi
Dated : 29" Juiy,2010

Anil Kumar Grover
Director

Bhupinder Kumar
Chairman
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A) Company's Philosophy
The Company believes in meeting all its obligations, in terms of its size, as a corporate entity to the best of its
spirit. The Company also believes in transparency, accountability and equity in all facets of its operations. The
Company is further committed to make continuous efforts for further improving the level of corporate governance.

B) Board of Directors
The Board of Directors consisted of seven directors as on 31" March, 2010 out of which four were Non -
Executive Directors and three were Executive (paid) Directors. Qut of the seven Directors four Direclors were
independent Directors and three from promoters group.

Fourteen Board Meetings were held during the financial year 2009-2010 (01-04-2009 to 31-03-2010) 01-04-
2009, 15-04-2009, 30-04-2009, 04-05-2009,03-07-2009, 20-07-2009, 31-07-2009, 28-08-2009 at 1:30 PM, 28-
08-2009 at 3:30 PM, 31-10-2009, 14-11-2009,03-12-2009, 29-12-2009 & 30-01-2010 The composition of Board
of Directors and the related information as on 31" March, 2610 was as follows:

Name of Director Attendance No. of Category Other Other
Atlast AGM Board of Director directorships Board's

Meetings Commitiees

Attended Member Chairman ¥
Sh. Bhupinder Kumar  Yes 14 WTD/PG 2 - -
Sh. Anil Kr. Grover Yes 14 NED/ID 3 1 2
Sh. D.PL.Nanda” No 14 ED/ID - 3 =
Sh. Gaurav Sekhri* Yes 14 NED/PG 1 - -
Sh. Kapil Sekhri No 10 WTD/PG 1 = =
Sh. Madan Kukreja+ No 10 NED/ID - - -
Sh. Rajesh Garg3s Yes 7 NED/ID - 2 1
PG - Promoter Group NED — Non Executive Director ID independent Director

WTD — Whole Time Director
+ appointed w.e.f. 15/04/09
$ appointed w.e.f. 28/08/09
* resigned w.e.t. 26/07/10

** Directorships in private companies, associations are excluded.

Committees of the Board

1.  Audit Committee
| Terms of reference

Apart from all the matters provided in clause 49 of the listing agreement and Section 292A of the Companies Act,
1956, the Committee reviews reports of Internal Audit, meets Statutory Auditors periodically and discusses their
findings, suggestions, internal control systems, scope of audit, observations of auditors and other related matters
and reviews major accounting policies followed by the Company. But in view of family disputs, tiHl it was settied as
mentioned elsewhare in the report the committee could not meet and review in the desired manner.

Il Composition

The Committee comprises 3 Non — Executive Directors. The Committee met 5 times during the year and the
attendance of the members at the rneetings was as follows:

7
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Name of the Member Status No. of meetings Atiended Remarks
Shri Rajesh Garg% Chairman 3
Shri Anil Kumar Grover Member 5
Shri D.PL. Nanda Member 5
Shri Ravindra Chhabra® Chairman** 2

% inducted w.e.f. 28/08/2009
*rasigned w.e.f. 28.08.200% & committee reconstituted
** ceased w.e.f. 28.08.2009

2. Remuneration Commitiee

I Terms of reference
The remuneration committee has been constituted to recommend/ review the remuneration package of Managing/
Whole Time Directors

i Composition
The Committee comprises 3 Non-Executive Directors. The Committee met 1 time during the year and the
attendance of the members at the meeting was as follows:

Name of the Member Status No. of meetings Attended Remarks

Shri Anil Kumar Grover Chairman 1

Shri Rajesh Garg % Member =

Shri D.PL. Nanda Member 1

Shri Ravindra Chhabra® Member** 1

% inducted w.e.f. 28/08/2008
*resigned w.e.f, 26.08.2009 & committee reconstituted
=* ceased to be Member w.ef, 28.08.2009

Details of remuneration paid to Directors
Executive Directors

Name of Director Salary (T in lacs) Other perquisites
Sh. Bhupinder Kumar 21.40
Sh. Kapil. Sekhri 21.40
Sh. D.P.L. Nanda 3.60
TOTAL 46.40

Non- Executive Directors
The Company does not pay any remuneration t¢ its Non- Executive Directors.

Remuneration Policy

The remunsration policy is directed towards rewarding performance based on review of achievements on a periodical
basis, keeping in mind the position of the Company and practice prevalent in indusiry. The Company does not have
an Employee Stock Option Policy.

Shareholding of Directors as on 318t March, 2010

Sr. No. Name No. of Shares Held
1 Shri Bhupinder Kumar 10,000
2 Shri Kapil Sekhri 10000
< Shri Gauray Sekhri 10000

(8
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3. Investors Grievance Commitiee

| Terms of reference
The Committee has been formed to review the functioning relating to redressal of investors services/grievances
and make suggestions for further improving system, follow up on the implementation of suggestions for
improvement, periodically report to the Board about serious concerns, if any, and deal/review other related
matiters.

Il Composition
The Committee comprises 3 Directors and all are Non- Executive Directors The Committee met 4 times during
the year and the aitendance of the members at the meeting was as follows :

Name of the Member Status No. of meetings Attended Remarks

Shri Anil Kumar Grover Chairman 4

Shri Rajesh Garg% Member 3

Shri D.PL. Nanda Member 4

Shri Ravindra Chhabra® Member** 1

% inducted w.e.f. 28/08/2009
*resigned w.e.f. 28.08.2009 & committee reconstituted
** ceased to be Member w.ef, 28.08.2009

The Company had 5965 sharsholders. During the year under review very few requests/ complaints were received
and they were attended/ resolved. Further, no securities were pending for transfer for more than15 days as on
31-03-2010

C.

General Body Meetings
The last four Annual General Mestings of the Company were held as under :

Financial Year Date Time Location Remarks
2008-2009 11" December, 2009 10:00 a.m. 18 South Drive Way, DLF Farms

Chhattarpur, New Delhi-110074

2007-2008 11" December., 2009 9:30 a.m. 18 South Drive Way, DLF Farms

Chhattarpur, New Delhi-110074

2006-2007 28" March, 2008 9:00 a.m. No. 6, Suitanpur {(Mandi Road}

Mehrauli, New Delhi-110030

2005-2006 30th Sept., 2006 9.0 a.m. No. 6, Sultanpur (Mandi Road)

Mehrauli, New Dalhi-110030

No postal ballots were used/ invited for voting at these meetings in respect of special resolutions passed as there
were no such provisions in the Companies Act, 1956. The Company will comply with the reguirements relating to
postal ballots as and when the requirement arises.

D.
{i)

(ii)

Disclosures
There are no materially significant transactions with the related parties viz. promoters, directors or the

management, their subsidiaries or relatives etc. that may have a conflicting potential conflict with the interest of
the Company at large,

No penalties or strictures have been imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchange or SEBI or any statutory
authority on any matter related to capital market for non compliance by the Company. The Company has ot
been regular in paying listing fees to the Stock Exchanges where its shares are listed, publishing notice/resuits
etc as required under listing agreements. However now the pending fees of BSE has been paid and Company
is in process of regularising the pending compliances. Further, there has been no trading of Company's shares
as the shares of the Company are under suspension. The Company has opted for voluntary delisting from DSE,
ASE & CSC as mentioned elsewhere in the Directors' Report.

()
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Means of Communication

The Company has been disclosing corporate financial performances/financial results to the stock exchange
after being approved by the Board. But in view cf family dispute the Company could not make reporting in tha
desired manner. However, after resolution of family dispute the Company has become more vigitant towerds
required reporting/compliances.

General Sharehoiders' information

i 23~ Annual General Meeting

Venue i 18 South Drive Way, DLF Farms,
Chhattarpur, New Delhi 110074
Time - 09:00 AM
Date ; 30" Sept ,.2010
ii Tentative Financial Calendar
1st Quarter Results 3 end July 2010
2nd Quarter Resuits . end Oct 2010
3rd Quarter Results - end Jan 2011
4th Quarter Resuits - end April 2011

iii Book Closure
The register of members and share transfer books of the Company remained close from Saturday, the 25"
September, 2010 to Wednesday, the 29" September, 2010 (both days inclusive).

iv  Listing on Stock Exchanges
The names and addresses of the stock exchanges at which the equity shares of the Company are listed
are as under:

S.No. Name of Stock Exchange

il 'The Delni Stock Exchange Association Ltd.
DSE House, 3/1 Asaf Ali Road,New Delhi-110002

2. BSE, Phiraze Jeejeebhoy Towers
25th Floor, Dalal Street, Mumbai-400001

a. The Calcutta Stock Ex. Association Lid.

7. lyons Hange, Kolkata- 700001

4, The Steck Exchange, Ahmedabad
Kamdhenu Complex, Panjara Pole, Ahmedabad 380015

‘Regional Stock Exchange of the Company.

Market Price Data
During the year under review there has been no trading in the scrip of the company.

Registrar & Transfer Agent and Share Transfer System

Physical shares of the Company being handled “in House” by the Company. The Company is availing the
services of M/s Alankit Assignments Ltd. for the purpose of electronic connectivity with the depositories for
dematerialized shares. Normally, the physical shares are transterred within 15-30 days, if found in arder. The
dematerialized shares are directly transferred to the beneficiaries by the Depositories. In view of negligibie
trading and low volume of share transfer activities, the Company did not thought it appropriate to appoint
separate Share Transfer Agent and therefore handling the activities In House.
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I. Detalis/Distribution of Shareholding as on 315t March, 2010

S.No. Category No. of Shares held % of Sharehoiding
1. Promoters 6050850 70.77
2. NRis/ OCBs 109700 1.28
3. Indian Public (including Indian Cos) 2394200 27.95
Total 8564750 100.00

J. Dematerialisation of Shares
The Company has arranged with both the Depositories i.e., NSDL & CDSL for demaierialisation of its shares.
anly 5% of the total equity capital is held in demat form as on 31-03-2010

K. Locations of the Piants

1. A-185, Industriat Area 2  Refinery Road 3.  No0.42-43, Manali
MiDC, Kherne Rajapur Oil Refinery Road
Navi Mumbai 460705 Panipat 132103 Ernavoor, Chennai

4. Survey Nol166/3&4 5  Vilage Mavza Rampur Jattan 6. CRMB Unit
Village Naroli, Silvassa Near liT Engg. Coliege BOF Pint
UT of Dadra Nagar Haveli Kalarnb, Distt. Sirmaur, H. P. Mathura Qil Refinary

Mathura-281606

7. Kuthathoor Bala Post 8. CRMB Plant 9. Taluka - Tuljapur
Via Katipalia Haldia Oil Refinery Distt-osmanabad
Mangalore-575028 (IOCL) Campus, Haldia Maharashtra

Purba Medinipore-721606
West Bengal

10. Block Oil Plant 11. Plot No. 2693, 2694, 2696 & 2697
Phase-l, 10CL Mauza, Dighasipur,

Panipat Refinery PQO-Chakdwipa, Dist. Purba,
Fanipat Medinipur, West Bengal

L. Address for Correspondence
Tinna Overseas Limited
Hegd. Office: No. 6, Sultanpur (Mandi Road), Mehrauli, New Delhi-110030

M. Non- Mandatory Requirements
The Company has not adopted non-mandatory requiraments except stated elsewhere in the report.

N. Re-appointment of the Directors
Two Directors are due for retirement by rotation at this Annual Genera!l Meeting, who are eligibie for reappointment.
Brief particulars of the Director are given below :

1.  Shri Kapil Sekri is one of the principal promoter of your Company. He is a BBA from Richmond College
London {UK). He is very a visionary leader. He is young, enargetic & is aiso one of the leading force for the
Campany 1o achieve enviable growth. He has also been the driving force in suceessful implementation of
various initiatives and strategies, which positioned the Company to this level. He is 38 years old having
vast ana varied experience of the business/industry cver 15 years. He was holding 10000 eguity shares
of the Company &s on 31.005.2010. He is also helding directorship ard member/Chairman of the committees
details of which as given below

{(11)
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Sr.No. Name of Companies Audit Investor Grievance Remuneration
in which Director Committee Committee Committee
A Tinna Agro Ventures Ltd. - -

2  Shri Anit Kumar Grover aged 44 years, having over 22 years experience in the field of accounting. finance,
marketing and other commaercial activities. He is a graduate. He was holding nil eguity shares of the
Company as on 31.03.2010.He is alsc a member/chairman in other board committees as givern below :

Sr.No. Name of Companies Audit investor Grievance Remuneration
in which Director Committee Commitiee Committee
Tinna Overseas Limited Yes Yes Yes

0. Code of Conduct and Ethics

The Board of Directars of the Company has laid down Code of Conduct and Ethics (the Code) for Company's
Directors and Senior Emplayees. Alf the Directors and the Senior Employees cevered by the Code have affirmed
compliance with the Code on an annual basis.

P. CEQ/CFO Certification

Since there is no CEQ/CFO in the Company, the Board affirm/certify the Annual Financial Statements conform in
terms of Clause 48 of the Listing Agreement on Corporate Governance Caode.

(12)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

The Management of Tinna Overseas Limited is pleased to present its analysis report covering segment —wise
performance and outlook. The report contains expectations of the Company’s businesses based on current environment.
Many unforeseen and uncontrollable external factors could alter these expectations.

Business Organisation/ Review
The Company was incorporated on 4th March, 1987. The Company was initially engaged in the manufacturing and
exports of leather footwear & related products.

Presently, the Company is mainly fecusing on bitumen related activities wherein the Company finds a great potential.
The Company has developed Bitumen Modifier, trade named * TBM SUPER” which substantially improves the vital
properties of Bitumen and in turn quality and life of rcads as evidenced by various Government/other laboratory
reports, as mentioned in the Directors’ Report, after being test launched/ successful test tracks being undertaken by
them at varicus places. Various tracks have been laid with the use of TBM at various places in India and they have
been perorming better. National Highway Authority has been using cur product after baing satisfied on number of
successiul trial runs. Various other Govt authorities/ bodies have/ have been recommending the use of TBM in their
projects/proposed projects. The Company has also tied up with the refineries of Chennai Petroleum Corporation Lid.
{CPCL), Indian Oii Corporation Lid. (IOCL) Hindustan Petroleurn Corporation Lid. (HPCL), Bharat Petroleun Coarporation
Lid. (BPCL) & Mangalore Refinery & Petrochemicals Limited {(MRPL) for supply of bitumen modifier to manufacture
maodified bitumen at their refineries level and in the process has already set up manufaciuring facilities at Chennai,
Mumbai & Panipat to cater the needs of IOCL, CPCL, HPCL & BPCL. The Company has also set up its manufacturing
facilities at Silvassa (Dadra Nagar Haveli) and Kalamb (Himachal Pradesh). The Company has further setup its
manufacturing facilities at Mangalore, Haldia & Mathura to meet their requirements. .The Company foresees a great
potential in this business.

The plantation of Jatropha activity in early stages but the Company believes it has a great potential in the coming
years.

During the year the Company has also undertaken trading of Soyabean Meal .

The Company is also contemplating to undertake business of modified bitumen & bitumen emulsion etc. The Company
sees a great scope in these business activities. As with the help of bitumen emuision even roads can ba repaired/
maintained in rainy season which will be a positive step in the country like india.

Industry Structure and Development

I. Bitumen Modifier & related products
Bitumen Madifier, trade named “ TBM SUPER" which substantially improves the vital properties of Bitumen and
in turn quality and life of roads as evidenced by various laboratory reports, as mentioned in the Directors’
Report, after being test launched/ successful test tracks being undertaken by them at various places, has a
great potential in the coming times. Further, the Govt. has also made special stress on Infrastructure Sector for
the coming years.

Il. Jatrepha Plantation
The Company has aiso undertaken the plantation of Jatropha which the Company believes has a great potential
in the coming years. Cil from the seeds of jatropha could be a source of alternative fuel i.e., bic-diesel. This
industry has great potential in the country & world over.

ll. Trading Activities :

The Company has also undertaken trading in Soyameal. The Company will also explore other products for
trading in the futurs.

(13)
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Opportunltles - Bitumen Medifier & related products
The cutlook for derriand of bitumen mcdifier & modified bitumen is engouraging.
One of Ihe main Company which has tied up with refinerias.
Potential increasa in Govt spanding on infrastructure development with special stress on development of roads.
Cost effective product with other similar products
Greal scope in tha country.

Threats/ Chalienges
Normal competition from other competitors.
Change in Govt. policies.
Invent of other baller altamative product in a fast changing globally environment.

Qutlook
The Govl is giving contnucus thrust on Infrastructure Sector with special stress on Road developmant. Tha
Govt spanding on infrastructure davelopmunt is expected to increase the demand of bitumen modiller &
medified bilus & other related productz. In view of lhe same, the long term prospect of Ditumen modifen

modified bituman and other meiated products of the Company remaine positive.

Risks & Concerns
Technology obsolesoance is an inherent business risk in a fast ¢hanging worltd and speed of change and
adapabilily is crucal for survival gl the Husiness
The domestle, regional and global macro- economic environment diractly inlluences e demand of the Bilumen
maodifier.
Any economic slowdown may adversely impact the business.
Any change in Govl policiss may adversely affect the demand/profitability of the product.
High guality of the product is very much needed.

Opporiunities — Jatropha Piantation
The cutlock for demand of jafropha seeds is encouraging.
Effective source for altarnative fuel i.e., bio-diesel
Cost effective product

Threats/ Chailenges
Normal campetition from other competitors.
Changa in Govi. policies
Invent of othar better alternative product in a fast changing globally environment.

Outlook
Alternative fuel |.e., bic-diese! has great potential in the country as well as world over. The Government has
positive attitude towards this industry/source.

Risks & Concerns
The performance ot agricufture in the country largety depend upon the weather conditions.
Technology cbsolescence is an inherent business risk in a fast changing world and speed of change and
adaptability is crucial for survivai of the business.
The domestic, regional and global macro-economic environment directly influences the demand.
Any economic siowdown may adversely impact the business.
Any change in Govt policies may adversely affect the demand/profitability of the product.

Oppartumties — in Trading Activities
The Company has great experience of trading/export of varicus products.
Always Demand of one or another product.
Government encouraging policies from time to ime
Cost effective.
Great scope in the country.

(14)
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Threats/ Challenges
Normal competition from other competitors.
Change in Govt. policies.
Rejection of ardefsiproducts.

QOutlook
The trading is a continuous process in business therefore it always has scope provided thie trading product is
judiciously dealt with.

Risks & Concerns
. Extreme competition.
The domestic, regional and global macro- econemic environment directly influences the demand of the products.
Any economic slowdown may adversely impact the business.
Any change in Govt policies may adversely aftect trading activities.
High quality of tihe product is very much neaded.

Segment wise Performance

During the year under review the Company was broadly divided into three segments Viz; Bitumen Division, Jatrepha
Division & Trading Division. A detailed note on the segment wise performance is given at point no, 19 under the notes
on accounts forming part of the annual accounts of the Company As explained eisewhere, the Company is mainly
focusing on bitumen related activities

Human Resources/ Industrial Relations

The Company's human resource policies are structured to the aspirations of the employess as well as the organization.
These policies are imptemented through training and other developmental programs. The policies encourage continuaus
learning & innovations The Company continues to have cordial industrial relations.

Internal Controi Systems

The Company is taking adequate steps to strengthen internal control systemis and to make them more effective. The
Company is taking special care that the systems be followed by tha Executives at all levels. The Cempany is further
taking steps to ensure that operating Managers ensures compliance witnin their areas. Furthar, their activitises are
monitored through internal audit. Discrepancies/ Weaknasses, if any, be found, are reported and rectified at the
earliest possible.

With the objective of improving the systems and removing bottlenecks, if any, periodic systems review is baing
carried owt and policies and procedures also being continuously amended.
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CERTIFICATE

To
The Member of Tinna Overseas Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Tinna Overseas Limited for the year
ended on 31st March, 2010 as stipulated in clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the said Company with stock
exchanges.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Qur examination
was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of tlie
conditions of the Corporate Governanca. It is neither an audit nor an expressicn of opinion on the finanainl siatemanis
of the Company.

In qur opinion and to the best of our information and accarding to the explanations given to us, we carlify that the
Company has complied with the conditions of Corpofate Governance as stipulated in the above mentoned clause of
Listing Agreement except proper reporting of quarterly financial results/other reparts and no CFQ/CED in the
Company & irregular payment of listing fee.

We state tha! generally no investor grievances are pending for a period exceeding one month against the Company
as per the records maintained by the Company.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company

For Ajay Baroota & Associates
New Delhi Company Secrataries
July 29, 2010

Ajay Baroota
C.P. No. 3945
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To

AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Members of
M/s. TINNA OVERSEAS LIMITED.

1.

We have audited the annexed Balance Sheet of
M/is. TINNA OVERSEAS LIMITED as at 31st March,
2010 and the profit and loss account of the company
and also the cash flow statement tor the period
ended on that date annexed thereta These financial
statements are the responsibility of the company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit

We conducted cur audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in India. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material
misstatements. An audit includes examining, on a
test bagis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used
and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

As required by the companies (Auditor’'s Report)
QOrder, 2003, as amended by the companias
(Auditor's Repcrt) (Amendment) Order 2004 issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-
section (4A) of section 227 of the Companies Act,
1958, wa enclose in the annexure hereto a
staternent on the matters specified in paragraphs 4
and 5, to the extent applicabie to the company, of
the said order.

Further to our commants in the annexure referred
o in the above paragraph. we report that;

a) We have obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief, were necessary for the purpose of
our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account, as
required by law, have been kept by the
company sc far as appears from our
exarination of these books and proper returns
adequale for the purposes of our audit have
been received from the branches not visited
by us;

c)

d)

Naw Deihi
Juty 29, 2010

The balance sheet, profit and loss account and
cash flow statement dealt with by this report
are in agreement with the books of account ;

In our opinion, the balance sheet, profit &
loss account and cash flow statement, dealt
with by this report, comply with the accounting
standards referred to in sub-section 3(C) of
section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956,;

On the basis of written representation
received from the directors, as on 31st March
2010 and taken on record by the beoard of
directors, we repart that none of the directors
are disqualified as on 31st March 2010 from
being appeinted as a director in terms of clause
{g} of sub section (1) of section 274 of the
Companes Act. 1855;

In our opinion, and to the best of aur information
and according to explanations given to us,

Subject to Note No. 18 of Notes to Accounts,
the said balance sheet, profit & loss account
and cash flow statement read tegether with the
notes thereon, give the infarmation required by
the Companies Act, 1956, in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in
corformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in India:-

iy inthe case of the balance sheet, of the state
of affairs of the company for the period
ended 31st March, 2010;

i} in the case of the profit and loss account of
the profit of the company for the paricd
ended on that date; and

iy in the case of cash llow statement, of the
cash flows of the campany for the period
ended on that data.

For Rawla & Company
Chartered Accountants
FAN No. 001881N

CAY P Rawia
{Partner)
M. Ne. 10475
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ANNEXURETOTHE AUDITORS' REPORT

Apnexure referred to in paragraph 3 of our report to the
members of M/S TINNA OVERSEAS LIMITED on the
accounts as at and for the period ended 31st March.
#0110 that;

e

{a)

(b)

{c)

{a)

(b)

(c)

(a)

(b)

{c)

(e)

The company has maintained proper records
showing full pardiculars including guantilative
details and situation of the fixed assets

The company has a phased periodical
programme of physical verification of all fixed
assets, which in our opinion is reasonable
having regard tc the size of the company and
the nature of its business. Nc material
discrepancies have been noticed on such
verification.

During the year, the company has not disposed
off major part of the assets

As per explanations given to us, inventories
have been physically verified by the
management at reasonable intervals. In our
opinian, the frequency of the verification is
reasonable.

The procedures of physical verification of
inventories followed by the management are
reasonaple and adequate in relation to the size
of the company and the nature of its business.
On the basis of cur examination of the
inventery records, in our opinion, the company
has maintained proper records of inventories.
The discrepancies noticed on physical
verification between the physical stocks and

the book records were not material.

The company had granted loans to two
companies covered in the register maintained
under section 30t of Companies Act, 1956.
Tha maximum amount involved during the year
was ¥ 1,06,09,166/- and the year end balance
of lcans granted to such companies was 2
55,42,315/-

Based on our examination, rate of interest and
other terms & conditions of loans given by the
company, secured or unsecured, are prima
facie not prejudicial to the interest of the
company

There is no stipulation of receipt of principal
amount and interest on loans granted by the
company, accordingly, clause 4(iii} {d) of the
Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2003 is
not applicable to the company.

The companry has taken loans from two
companies covered in the register maintained

under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.
The maxirmum amount involved during the year
was ¥ 1,25,00,000/- and the year end balance
of lpans granted to such companies was Nil.

{t) The company has not paid any interest on foans
taken from companies covered in the register
maintained u/s 301 of the Companies Acl 1956,
However, other {erms and conditions on which
loans have been taken from comparies, firms
or other parties listed in the register maintaine:d
under section 301 of the Companias Act, 1956
are not prima facie, prejudicial to the interest of
the company

{g) There is no stipulation of repayment of loans
and interest

in our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, there are adequate intarnal
control procedures commensurate with the size of
the company and the nature of its businuss with
regard to purchases of inventories, fixed aszsts
and for the sale of goods and services. During the
course of our audit, we have not observed any
continuing failure to correct major weaknesses in

the internal conirols.

(a) According to the information and explanations
given to us, we are of the opinion that the
transacticns that need to be entered in the
register maintained u/s 301 of the Companies
Act, 1956 have been so entered; and

(b}  In curopinion and according to the information

and explanations given to us, no transactions
are made in pursuance of contracts or
agreements that need 1o be entered in the
register maintained under section 301 of the
Companies Act, 1961.

In our opinion and according to the information given
to us, the company has not accepted any deposits
from the pubfic under section 58A ,5BAA or any
other relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
1956 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits)
Rules,1975.

in our opinion, the company has reasonabte internal
audit system which requires to be strengthened to
make it commensurate with size and the nature of
its business.

Woe have broadly reviewed the cost records of the
company and are of opinion that, prima facie, the
accounts and records prescribed under clause (d)
sub section (l) section 209 of the Companies Act,
1956 have been maintained. However, we have not
made a detailed examination of the records with a
view to satisfy ourselves that the records are
complete and correcl.
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9.

(i) The company is regular in depositing with
appropriate authorities undispuled statutory
dues including provident fund, employee’s state
insurance, income tax, sales tax, weaith tax,
service tax, custom duty, excise duty, cess
and other statutory dues apptlicable to it, except
advance income tax/ tds and at few occasions
of provident fund, employees state insurance
& value added tax.

(i) According to the information and explanations
given to us, no undisputed amount outstanding
payable in respect of income tax, sales tax,
wealth tax, service tax, custom duty, excise
duty, cess, at the end of the period ending 31¢
March, 2010 for a period more than six months
from the date they become payable except
wealth tax of ¥ 5,63,987/-

According to the information and explanations
given to us there are no dues of value added
tax, income tax, custom duly, wealth tax,
excise duty, service tax and cess which have
not been deposited on account of any dispute,
except the following:

(i)

. Sales Tax

Fin.
Year

Forum
where
dispute Is
pending

Nature of Amount

dues

Name of
Statute

Additional
demand

2002-
2003

1,54,310/- Assessing
Gfficer
Ward-106,

New Delhi

ESI
Corporation

Additiona$
demand

3,96,629/- 1999

2000

Regianal
Director
Faridabad,

10.

11

i2.

13.

The company does not have any accumulated
losses as at end of accounting period nor has
incurred any cash losses in the accounting period
covered under audit and in the immediate preceding
financial year.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanation given to us, the company has not
defauited in repayment of dues to a financial
institutions or banks.

In our opinion and according to the Information and
explanation given to us that the company has not
granted any loans & advances on the basis of
security by way of pledge of shares, debentures
and other securities.

In our opinion the company is not a chit fund or a
nidhi / mutual benefit fund / society. Therefore, the

14.

15.

16.

17

18.

18.

20.

21.

New Deihi
July 29, 2010

provisions of clause 4{xiii) of the Companies
{Auditors Report} Order, 2003 are not applicable to
the company.

In cur opinion the company is not dealing in or trading
of shares / securities / debentures and other
invesiments. Accordingly the provisions of clause
4(xiv) of the Companies (Auditors Report} Order,
2003 are not applicable to the company.

Based on our examination of records and according
to the information and explanation given to us, the
company has not given guarantees for loans taken
by others from banks or financial institutions, which
are prejudicial to the interest of the company.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanation given to us, on and overall basis, the
term loans have been applied for the purposes for
which they were raised.

According to the information and explanation given
to us and an overall examination of the balance
sheet of the company, we are of the opinion thal the
funds raised on short term basis have not been
utilized for long term investment.

According fo the information and explanation given
to us the company has not made any preferential
allotment, accordingly the provisions of clause 4{xviii)
of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2003
are not applicabie to the company.

According to the infermation and explanation given
to us the company has not issued any debenture,
accordingly the provisicns of clause 4(xix) of the
Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2003 are not
applicable to the company.

According to the information and explanation given
to us the company has not raised money by public
issue during the year, accordingly the provisions of
clause 4(xx) of the Companies (Auditors Report)
Order, 2003 are not applicable to the company.
According the information and explanation given to
us, no fraud on or by the company has been noticed
or reported during the period that causes the
financial statement to be materially misstated.

For Rawta & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 001661N

CAY.P. Rawia
(Partner)
M. No. 10475
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BALANCE SHEET AS

AT 31st MARCH,

Amount (2}

DESCRIPTION SCHEDULES As at 31-03-2010 As at 31-03-2009
I. SOURCES OF FUNDS :
{1} SHAREHOLDER'S FUNDS
Share Capital A A5,370,333 BEIT0333
Aessrve & Surplus B 281,606,983 248,045 00
Total 368,977,916 333 476,325
{2) LOANFUNDS "
Sueured Loans Ciiy 131,300,823 43,386.134
UnSeured Loans Clu) 5,000,000 -
Total 136,309,823 43,388, 134
[3) DEFFEREDTAXLIABILITIES 17,524 956 td, 724310
GrandTotal 520 612,008 39187782
Il APPLICATION OF FUNDS :
(1) FIXEDASSETS D
Gioss Block 232722769 188,270,780
Lesa | Chapraciation 53278975 ¥ i3
et Block 170,442,760 162060017
Capinl wark ir irogress 27.240 p97 5; V58,704
Tatal 205 636,487 Er 210 a1
(2l INVESTMENTS E 134797, F10 Ba 185231
(3] CURRENT ASSETS LOANS & ADVANCES F
i Iventories 37,127 387 BEHTZ 138
&) Suredry Debbors 107 243,081 46,823 525
(i Caun & Bank Eatance 12855208 36,008 BaT
[l Oiber Gurfenl Assets 37,248,148 39,556 226
{el Losns prd Atvances 28,756 126 24,026 HEg
Tota! 08,031,560 E2ATH 02
LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS G

Cormni Liabiles 115,718,344 an435 804
Provlsres 12,985,318 12,900 450
o) 128703800 —JAFeINE
NET CURRENT ABSETB (F- G) 179.327.834 178,141,740
Grand Total 530,812,005 a1 626 a2
EIGNIFCANT ACCOUNTING PCUICIES AND NOTES ON ACCOUNTS o
The schedqules refermed to above form an ntagral pam of the Balancs Sheat
An par oanr repad of even dole attaclhied
Fow Hawha & Comparty For and an behait ol Ihe Board of Directors
Chattued Accouniants
FAM Mo, 001665156
LAY FFawla Rarul Garg And Kilmar Grover Bhupinoer Kumat
[Fanper) [Ca, Secrelary) (Dirsictor) {Diiresctear)
M. Me 10475 M Mg ACS 2053
Mo [aife
July28 2010
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PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31st MARCH, 2010

DESCRIPTION SCHEDULES Amount (%)
2008-10 2008-09

{l) INCOME
Sale H 1,606,125,445 599,498,744
Less: Excise Duty {34,775,531) {53,037,212)
1,571,349,914 545,561,632
Other Income ! 10,615,242 1,655,571
Variation in Stock J (7,716,122) (8,580,349)
Total 1,574,249,034 537,626,754
() EXPENDITURE — S ———
Manufacturing / Trading Expenses K 1,416,991,436 349,394,689
Office & Administrative Expenses L 39,075,230 33,523,859
Selling & Distribution Expenses M 43,777,244 32,715,489
Financial Charges N 17,264,441 9,225,537
Depreciation 3,828,121 9,600,760
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 1,187,796 176,991
Total 1,528,134,268 _ 434,837,325
() PROFIT / { LOSS ) BEFORE TAXATION ( -1l ) 46,114,766 102,989,429

Less :

Provision for Income Tax (inclusive of MAT adjustment) 8,321,372 11,199,438
Provision { Reversal ) for Deferred Tax 2,800,637 (2,218.808)
Provision for Fringe Benefit Tax 54,865 1,673,500
Provision for Wealth Tax 90,475 B.378
Income Tax related to Earlier year 1,408,337 5,038,600
Prior Period Expenses (Add / Loss) ~(121,807) 42,339
(Iv) PROFIT / { LOSS ) AFTER TAXATION 33,560,987 87,245,984
ADD: BALANCE BROUGHT FORWARD FRCM LAST YEAR 314,309,185 227,063,201
BALANCE CARRIED TO BALANCE SHEET 347,870,172 314,309,185
BASIC/DILUTED EARNING PER SHARE 3.92 10.11

‘SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES ON ACCOUNTS O

The schedules referred to above form an integral part of
the Profit & Loss account.

As per our report of even date attached.

For Rawia & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRNNu. 001661N

CAY. P Hawla Rahu! Garg
|Partner) {Co. Secretary)
M. Mo, 10475 M. No, ACS 21059
New sl

July 29, 2010

For and on behaif of the Board of Directars

Anil Kumar Grover

Bhupinder Kumar
{Director)
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Tinna Overseas Limited

Schedules Forming Part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2010

DESCRIPTION

As at 31.03.2010

Amount (T}

As at 31.03.2009

SCHEDULE 'A’ SHARE CAPITAL
AUTHORISED
100,000,000 Equity Shares of ¥10/- EACH
(Previous year 1,00,00,000/- Shares of 10/~ Each )

ISSUED. SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP

85,64,750 Equity Shares of ¥10/- each fully paid up
(Previcus year 85,64,750 Equity Shares), Refer Note No. 2

Laas : Calls in arrears ( From Others on 114100 Shares)
{Previcus Year 114100 Shares)
Total
SCHEDULE "B’ RESERVES & SURPLUS

il GENERAL RESERVE

iy Share Premium
Balance
Less : Qutstanding on account of calls in arrears

nit Prefit and Loss Alc
Az per last Balance Sheet
Add, ; Transfer from P&L

Total

Less : Adjustment as per CLB Order, Refer Note No. 2
Total
Grand Total
SCHEDULE ‘C’ (i} SECURED LOANS
LOANS FROM BANKS :
From Syndicate Bank, Mayapuri, New Delhi
Cash Credit against Stock & Book Debts

WCDL A/c against Stock & Book Debts
Term Loan against plant & machinery, land & building

LOANS AGAINST HYPOTHECATION OF VEHICLES FROM ;
ICICI Bank LIMITED, New Delhi
Tata Capital Car Loan
HDFC Bank Limited, New Delhi
National Small industries Corp. Ltd, New Delhi

Totai
SCHEDULE 'C' (1) UNSECURED LOANS
Best Buildmart Pvt. Lid.
Luminant Distributors P, Ltd.
Raj Profin Pvi. Ltd.
Total

100,000,000

85,647,500

(277.167)

85,370,333

11,704,929

178,075,186
2,217,333

176,857,853

59,483,213
33,560,988

93,044,201

93,044 201

281,606,983

13,668,352

88,031,845
20,660,715

708,759
7,327,295
822,757

131,309,823

10,00,000
30,00,000

10,006,000

50,00,000

10,00,00,000

85,6847 500

(277,167

BS:IT0.333
11,704,929

179,075,186
2,217,333
176,857,853
227,064,201
87,245,985
314,309 186
(254,825,973)
59,483,213
248,045,996

27,159,716

2,041 535

14,184,883

e ————

43,386,134

NOTES:

i} Working capital limits are secured by stock and book debts of the Cornpany

Ii} Term loan of ¥ 2.96 Crores (P ¥ 0.20 Crores) is secured against Machinery and Vehicles

iy Sacured loans include ¥ 137 63 lacs repayable within one year { Previous Year ¥ 13.39 Lacs}.

iv) T bank borrowings are collaterlly secured by ail the Fixed Assets of the company and the persenal guarantee of Sh. Bhupinder

Kumar, Sh. Gaurav Sekhii and Sh, Kapil Sekhri
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Tinna Overseas Limited

Schedule forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2010

Amount (3}

SCHEDULE-E DESCRIPTION As at 31.03.2010 Asg al 31 0320089
INVESTMENTS :
1. INVESTMENT IN PREFERENCE SHARES :
a. M/S.INDO ENTERPRISES (P) LTD. {UNQUOTED } 12,000,000 12,000, 6010
1,20,000 ( PY 1,20,000) 9% Nen-Cumulative Preterence Shares of
T 10/- each at a premium of of ¥ 90/- each Refer Note No. 2 12,000,000 Te

(2) INVESTMENT IN EQUITY SHARE

1} Indeo Solution (P) Ltd. (Unquoted) -
Nil (PY 80,000} egulty share af ¥ 10/- each fully paid up

2) Gautam Overseas Ltd. (Unquoted) 5
Nil (PY 89,983} equity share of 2 100/- each lully paid up

3} Shiv Ratna Agro Proaduct P.Ltd. (Unquoted) 2,306,500
2.,30,000 (PY 1.00,00C ) Equity shere of T 10/- each fully paid up
4} Keerthiinternational Agro Pvt. Ltd. { unquated ) 1,100,750

11,000 { PY 11,000 } enquity shares of T 100/-each fully paid up
5) Tinna Viterra Trade p. Ltd (Earlier known as Maple Newgen
Trade P Ltd.} { unquoted )

788914 { PY Nil) equity shares of ¥ 10/- #ach fully paid up 7,889,140
A0 IPY Nil) equity shares of ¥ 10 each al a prenuum of 340,320
¥ 75.08 each fully paid up

6) MNova Cements Ltd.{ unquoted ) 3,760,005

675200 {PY Nil) equity shares of § 10/- each at a premium of
¥ 40/- each fully paid up

7) Fratelli Wines P. Itd.{ unquoted ) 9,300,000
830000 {PY Nil ) equity shares of ¥ 10/- each fully paid up
B) B.S Farms & Properties Pvt. Ltd. { unquoted ) 18,201,000

606700 (PY Nil) equity shares of T 10/- each at a premium of
% 20/ =ach fully paid up

9} Puja Infraiech Pvt. Ltd. ( unquoted ) 7.500,000
2,50,000 (Y Nil) equity shares of ¥ 10/- each at a premium
of ¢ 20/- each fully paid up

10) Space Age Tech, Pvt. Ltd, ( unquoted ) 2,000,000
40000 (PY Mil) equity shares of ¥ 10/- each at & premium of
¥ 40- each fully paic up

11) 8.5 Horticullures Pvt. Ltd. { unquoted ) 18,000,000
3,60,000 (PY Nil) eaulty shares of ¥ 10/- each at a premium
of T 40/- each fully paid up

3) Advance for 3hares
(i) B.G.K Infrantructure P, Ltd. 17,200,000
(i) Fartllll Wines Pvt. Ltd. 5,200,000
(iii)Hydramech Engineers Pvt. Ltd. -
liv) Gee Ess Pee Land Developars Pvt. Ltd.
{v) Nova Caments Ltd, 3
{vi) Bhy Marcanis Pvt. Ltd. -

Totat 122,797,710
Total Investment 134,797,710
MOTES:
i} Aggregate Amound of -
Quoted Inueatmants 5
Unquoted Investments 134.797.710
Totat 134,797,710
2 Apgregate Market valls bi :
Qunted inverimeris
Unguolad lrvestmants
Book Vains* 134,797,711
Total T 134797710
* Marksl Value i nol releeved in the sheenos of i availabillly, sinte the oompanies are in progresaive slogs

BOO, 000

1,888,300

1,000,000
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Tinna Overseas Limited

Schedule forming part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2010

Amount (2}

DESCRIPTION

As at 31.03.2010

As at 31.03.2009

SCHEDULE ‘F' CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES :
a) INVENTORIES { As taken valued & certified by the management )
Stores, Spares & Others
Raw Matenal
Work in Progress
Finished Gogds
Add: Excise duty on finished goods

b) SUNDRY DEBTORS (Unsecured, unconfirmed but considered good)
More than Six Manths
Less "Pravision for doubtful debis
Others
Less -Provision ior doublul debis

c) CASHAND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand
Balance with Scthieduled Banks :
In Current Accounts
In Fixed Deposit Account

d) OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Claims Recewable
Security Deposits
Less . Provision for Doubtful debts
Excise Duty FL &/ Modvat /7 Service Tax / Vat
Other Assats

a) LOANS & ADVANCES
Advarice Recoveraie in Cash or kind or ior vEtlue 1o be received
Qiher Advances
Tax deducled at source

Total

Grand Total
SCHEDULE ‘G" CURRENT LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS
Curent Liabilirias

Sundry Ci or@ for Geoods Services & Ekpenses

Oihey Llabilltias

Total (A)

Provisions
Incorme Tax
Wealth: Tax
FET
Borws
Ex-gritia
Gratuity
Leave Encashmaent
Tolal {B)
Grand Total (A+B)

465,734
32,827,046
55,388
3,329,439
449,779

37,127,387

§.095.320

182,148,671

197,243,991

538,150

1,649,928
10,466,130

12.655.208

32,123,262
£103,782
[50,060)
1,941,663
1,120,411
17,248,148

13,228 876
£ E52,380
4,805,560

B8, Z57 334
6,461 030

115,718,344

T EE3.931
G54,462

364,336
41,698,923
3,523,535
7.577.415
707,926

53,872,135

4,904,517
(312,358)
94,546,864
(215,198)

98,923,825

164,897
25,660,539
10,253,411
36,078.8947

32,153,662
3,717,313
1,968,344
1.716.807

39,

(il

56,226

16,135,649
3897140
4 078180

24 6. 869
252,478,002

46,379,746
15,050,004

61,435 HO4

£179,111

B26, 353
173,850

602 534
47086

2,588 301

ces MRIEY

12,900,458
74,336,262
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Tinna Overseas Limited

Schedule forming part of the Profit & Loss Account as on 31st March, 2010

Amount ()
DESCRIPTION 2009-10 2008-08
SCHEDULE 'H" BALES
Exporls Sale - 9,966,177
Sales ( Meditier) 214,743,365 482,719,005
Sales CTCR i 45,626,000 26,265,269
Sale- PTSA Crumb Aubber 40# Mesh 61,987,500 -
Sale CRMB/PMB 378,713,083
Madification Charges 38,837,850
Sale- Fine Crumb Rubber 1,169,274 -
Sale Soya Doc Yellow 830,272,842 a
Sale Natural Asphait - 3.708,060
High Sea Sale - Natural Asphalt - ) 14 803 061
Total 1,571,349,914 545,561,532

SCHEDULE ‘I' OTHER INCOME

Misc Income 25812438
interest Received 1,833,737 -1
Rent Received 1,363,255 360,000
Profit on Sale of Assets 319,200 1,688
Prefit on Sate of Investment/ Shares 3,885,700 -
Fareign Exchange Fluctuation 922,101

Total 10,615,242

SCHEDULE 'J’ VARIATION IN STOCK :
Closing Stock

Semi-Finished Goods 55,389

Fimished Goods 3,779,218

Less: Excise Duty (449,779) )
Total (A) 3,384,828 11,100,850

OPENING STOCK: Eime—— T —— ==

Semi-Finished Goods 3,523,535 1,288 7P4

Finished Goods 8,285,341 22 200,346

Less: Excise Duty {707,926) (27497 841)
Total {B) 11,100,950 20,697,202

Variation in Stock (A-B) (7,716,122} =1+

BCHEDULE ‘K’ MANUFACTURING EXPENSES
Raw Material Consumed:-

Opening Stock 41,698,923 28,764,251

Add - Purchase 518,148,440 300,975,554

Less : Closing Stock (32,827,046} 41,695,923)

Purchase Fine Crumb Rubher 586,200

Purchase Soya Dac Yellow 828,604,732 12,380,616

Electricity & Water Charges 5,443,407 3,636,208

Short in Process 4,243 43,292

Consumzable Stores Consumed 3,866,037 3,411,830

Packing Material Consumed: -

Cpening Stock 384,338 291,893

Add - Purchase 4,200,050 4,345 4683

Less : Closing Stocks (465,734) (3684 338)

Repair 1o Machinery 4,735,305 2,241,308

Establishments 32,349,455 |

Contribution to PF & ESI 4,228,163

Staft Welfare 3,018,958

Dulies & Taxes 85,035

Security Expenses -

Rent - Faclory 1,024,767

Freight & Cartage Others 916,165 2207 405
Total 1.416,991,436 349 304 629
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Tinna Overseas Limited

Schedule forming part of the Profit & Loss Account as on 31st March, 2010

Amount (%)
DESCRIPTION 2009-10 2008-09
SCH-'L’ OFFICE & ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Rent 404,141 376,808
Printing & Stationery 814,243 715,341
Tour & Traveiling Expenses 11,074,323 7,172,180
Conveyance 1,967,067 1,897,580
Festival Expenses 1,564,879 797 420
Telephene, Teiex & Fax 2,068,809 2,088,718
Postage & Courier 326,472 189,456
Vehicle Maintenance 3,788,904 4,740,097
Repairs & Maintenance 4,777,048 2,150,657
General Expenses 416,518 256,392
Insurance Charges (Others) 590,201 828,422
Legal & Consultancy 3,400,552 3,694,854
Donation 311,584 218,138
Director's Rermuneraticn 4,540,000 6,594,017
Short & Excess Recovery/Bal W/OIf 70,479 3,996
Rates & Taxes 520,209 247,480
AGM Expenses 600,720 -
Ditference in Faoreign Exchange Fluctuation 554,999 352,679
Provision faor doubtiull Debts {477,556) (2.459,927)
Bad Debts 440,994 2,987,483
Interest Others 19,684 15,400
Penalty 74,000 -
Auditor's Remuneration :
-Audit Fees 500,000 400,000
~Tax Audit Fees 100,000 55,000
-Cther Capacities 50,000 49.669
-Service Tax 66,950 51,981
Total 39,075,230 33,523,859
SCH-"M’ SELLING & DISTRIBUTION EXPENAES
Advertisemerit 188,343 73.542
Membiership & Subscription 1,109,363 469,141
Freight & Clearing Charges 24,821,337 21,304,625
Export Expenses - 1,585,300
Lab Exp./Research & Development 948,848 297,600
Commission, & Brokerage 7.681,142 3,899,122
Discount 1,243,567 957,958
Business Promotion 7,753,659 4,110,539
Sales Tax 30,585 7,662
Total 43,777,244 32,715,489
SCH-'N' FINANCIAL CHARGES
Bank Charges 5,315,671 2,800,567
Cash Transaction Tax . - 2,627
Inerest Paid 11,948,770 6,422,343
Total 17,264,441

9,225,537
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SCHEDULE 'O’

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES & NOTES ON ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31.03.2010

(4)

1.

6.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

GENERAL :

a) The financial statements have been preparad under the historical cost convention in accordance
wilh the generally accepted accounting slandards and relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
1956 as adopted consistently by the company.

o) The company generally foliows rercantile system of accounting and recognizes significant lams of
incorme and expenditure on accrua! basis, except that cerntain transactions are accounied on cash
basis, sinoe il i not possible to ascertain with reasonable accuracy the quantum to be provided fo
such as (i) bank commission / charges on foreign transactions, (i) insurance claims, (I} expart
demurrages or claims, (iv) inferest on calls in arrears / doubtful lcans & advances, {v) incoms tax
/ sales tax / wealth tax / service tax / excise duty / cess.

USE OF ESTIMATES:

Tne presentation of financial statemants in conformity with the generally accapted accounting princiniss
requiras estimates and assumptions to be made that effect reportabie amount of eszeis and lablilizs on
tha date of financial statemenis and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the raparting
porind Difference between the actual resulis and estimates are recognized in the year in which tha resulis
are Known / matatialired.

FIXED ASSETS:

aj Fixed asgals are stated at cost of acquisition, net of medvat (cenvet) credit ol axcies Jdity
countarvalling duty or of construction, inciuding preoperative, financial and incidantal expensos
attributable to acquisiticn: or construction of fixed assets less depreciation.

b) Capital work in progress are carried at cost, comprising direct costs, related Incidenial sxpenses &
attricutable interest

c) Expenses of revenue nature, which are related to project setup are transferred to capital wark in
progress panding capitalisation. These expenses are to be allocated 0 fixed assaty (0 i yanr of
commeancemant of the related projects.

DEPRECIATION:

{a) Fixed assets have been depreciated on straight line method in accordance with the rates as
prescribed in Schedule XIV and provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 on such asaels put to use.

{(b)  Assets costing not rnore than ? 5,000/- each individually are depreciated at 100%:

INVESTMENTS:

(a) Leng term investmants are vaiued at cost after appropriate adjustment, if necessary for permanarit
diminution in their value,

{D) Current investments are stated at lower of cost and fair vatue on the date of Balancs shes!

INVENTORIES:

a) The raw materials, stores & spare parts are valuad at cost. The raw material, stores & spares 8 aw
material contents of work in progress are valued by using the first in first out (FIFQ) methed while
the finished goods are valued by using weighted average cost method. Cost relating to finished
goods mean direct raw material, labour cost & allocabte overhead manufacturing espeses.

b) Woark in progress and material in progress are vaiued at raw material cost plua 20% of raw meatarial
cost or 50 % of conversion cost whichaver is lower.
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10.

11.

12.

c) Finished goods are vatued at cost plus excise duty or realizable value whichever is lower. The policy
of vajuation of inventories is in accordance with Accounting Standard-2 (Revised) of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

d} Damaged goods / scrap stocks are valued at expected realizable vaiue.

EXCISE DUTY :
Excise duty (including education cess} has bean accounted for in respect of the goods cleared. The
company is providing excise duty liability in respect of finished products

SERVICETAX :
Service Tax has been accounted for in respect of services rendered.

REVENUE RECOGNITION:

a) SALE:

i. Export sale is recognized as on the date of shipment and accounted on the rates prevailing on the
date of negotiations of documents. The revenue in respect of export benefit is recognized on post
exports basis, at the rate at which the entitiement accrues

ii- Domestic sales are inclusive of excise duty

. in case of Job works at Mumbai unit the systemn of accounting in financial books are to consider net
eftect of material received and dispatched whereas in excise records complete details of input /
output quantity and excise duty is accounted for.

b) INTEREST INCOME :

Interest income is recognised on accrual basis, except on doubtful or sticky loans and advances.

c) DIVIDEND FROM INVESTMENT IN SHARES :
Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the payment is established.

GRATUITY/RETIREMENTS BENEFITS:
i) Company’s contribution: to provident fund are charged to profit & loss account.

iB) The company is following the Accounting Standard-15 (Revised) issued by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India for gratuity and leave encashment and the same is valued on the basis of
actuarial valuation.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT:

Net of revenue expenditure on research and development is charged to profit and loss account in the year
in which it is incurred, Capital expenditure on research and development is shown as fixed assets and
depreciation is considered.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS:

a) Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at equivalent rupee value converted at the rates
prevailing at the time of such transaction.

b} Export on collection / import on payment basis, as on the close of the year are finally adjusted on the
basis of exchange rates prevailing as on that date through exchange fluctuation account to the
respective accounts as per the guidance issued by The Institute of Charlered Accountants of India.

c} Short / excess payment received for export on account of difference in foreign exchange are
accounted through exchange fluctuation account.

d) Bank guarantee and letter of credits are recognized at the point of negotiation with banks and
converted at the rates prevailing on the date of negotiation, hewever, outstanding at the period end
are recognized at the rate prevailing as on that date and total sum is considered as contingent
liabitity.

o) Short / excass payment for import of assets on account of difference in foreign exchange are
accounted for as the cost of respective asset.

(29)
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i3

14,

15

16.

17.

f} Short ! excess payment for import of raw material and consumable expenses on account al diflerencs
in foreign exchange are accounted for as the cost of respective material.

DIRECT TAXES

a) INCOME TAX / WEALTH TAX:
Provigion for income tax, it any, is based on assessable / asseasad profits / losses computed in
accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Wealth tax is ascertained In accordancs
with the provisions ol the Wealth Tax Act .

o) DEFERRED TAX:
Deferrad income tax, expanse or benalit is recognized on timing differences, baing the difference
betwesn the accounting inceme and the taxable income that originate in one penod & are capable of
reversal i one or more sublsequant parod. Deferred 1dx assats or liabilities are measured using the
tax rates and laws enacted or substantively anacted as on balance sheet date.

Daferred tax assets are recognized and carried forward to the extent there is a reasorable ceralnty
that sufficlant {uluie taxable Incomea will be available against which such deferred lax assats can be
rediiced.

G) SALES TAX /VALUE ADDED TAX:
Final gales tax liabiity / Value added tax hablility is ascertained on the finalsation of assessments in
uccondance o provisions of sales tax laws / valie added tax lgws ol (espective siaies where the
company iz having officas/works.

BORROWING COST:

Barrowing casis that are directly atrbuiable to the scquisition and construction of gualllying nésety are
capitatized as part of the cost of such asset. A qualifying aseet is ono that necessarily lakes substantial
paiiod of tima 10 gel ready for intended Lse. All othar barrawing costs are charged 1o revanue in e parod
in which thay are Ingurred.

IMPAIAMENT OF ASSETS:

An assal is trested as impaired whan the carrving cost of the assel exceeds g recoverable valua.
Hecoverahle value is the higher of an asset's net selling price and value in use. An Impaimmant loss &
charged 1o the prafit £ loss sceount in the year in which an asset s identified as impaired. The impairment
logs recognized In prior actounting period Is reversed |l there has been a change in the eatimate of
recaovarable amount.

LEASES:

Leases of assels under which |he lessor effectively retains all the rieks and benafite of ownarship
arg classifisd as operating lease. Payments made under operating leasa are charged 1o profll and loss
account ovar the period of lease.

SEGMENT REPORTING:

fa) Primary Segment: Businass Segment
The company's oparmating buginess are organized and managed separately according o tha natura
of preducts, with egch sagment representing a strategic business unit that offars diflersst products.
The idantified segmenta are bitumen division. trading In poultry seeds and agrioultural activity
divigion

{b} Secondary segment: Geographical Segment
The analyais ol geagraphical segment Is not applicabla since all the works are situsted within indin
mcluding Bxports executed from India.
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i8.

{¢} Unallocated items:
All common income, expenses, assets and ilabilities where so ever are not possible to be aliocated
to different segments are treated as unallgaiacl items.

OPERATING EXPENSES:
For works performed at the site of refingries and deduction made by them for expanses - electricity and
stearmn charges etc. are accounted for on estimated basis.

PRIOR PERIOD ITEMS:

Significant items of income & expenditure which relate to prior accounting period, other than those occasioned
by events occurring during or after the close of year and which is treated as relalable by the current year
are accounted in the profit & loss account under respective head of nominal account.

(B) NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
Canungent liabilities :-
(Amount in T)

31.03.2010 31.03.2002
i) Bond executed in favour of Assti.Commissioner of
Central Excise, New Delhi. Shoes division. * 1, 25,00,000/- 1,25,00,000/-
iy Bank guarantee
(Margin money held at 21,03,99,394/-) 5,58,94,270/- 7.91,41,320/-
(Previous Year 1,01,85 332/-)
iy Surety with Sale Tax / Vat (Margin) money 55,000/ 57,500/~
as FDR of 2 66,736/ (P. Y.T 68,079/-
iv) Claim against the company / disputed liability
not acknowledged as debts ( Jai Bharat Tanners ) 17,76,558/- 17,76,558/-
*  The footwear unit situated at A - 151, Mayapuri Industrial Area, Phase — i, New Delhi is

closed and disposed off; hence the company has applied for release of the bond.

v) A notice dated 26/04/2010 has been served on the company by Cess Department, Navi
Mumbai Municipal Corporation for non- payment of cess charges of ¥ 32,40,000/-{approx)
exclusive of interest and penalty on purchase of goods from autside Navi Mumbai area from
financial year 2002-03 to 2008-09 and pending decision.

vi) As per Company Law Board (CLB) Order dated 9™ June, 2009 effective from 5™ January,
2008 company is liable to pay 5G% of USD 8,19,983.16 together with interest @ 7% p.a. from
01.10.1985 to 19.11.1998 which works out to be USD 1,80,055.32 refating to claim of M/s
Nationai Ability filed against M/s Tinna Finex Limited (TFL) and also in lien of taxation cost in
the same matter, company is liable to pay GBP 2,05,805.31 together with interest @ 7% p.a.
from 19.11.1998 until the day of final payment to M/s National Ability.

The claimant has filed a petition dt. ¢7/08/1998 in the High Court of Delhi to make Arbitration
Award as a rule of this court. The other company (TFL) has contested the same & the matter
is under consideration of High Court of Delhi, whereas it has been decided in favour of M/s.
National Ability. The other company Tinna Finex Limited (TFL) has filed Special Leave Petition
(SLP) in Hon'ble Supreme Court & pending decision.

During the financial year 2008-09, the company has aflocated / assigned the under mentioned Assets &
Liabilities as per order dated 09.06.2009 effective from 05/01/09 of Company Law Board, New Delhi with
Relference to Petition No. 17/2008 dated 14.05.2008 filed under sec. 397, 398, 402 & 403 of Companies Act
1956, o petitioners and respondents and the manner it which to be dealt with in the financial statements
of the company. The Note specify the adoption in the figure of previous year duly forming composite part
of the year ending 31 March, 2010
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SCHEDULE Particulars Value Remarks
SCHEDULE “A® Reduction of Share Capital as per Para 476,500 | Mr. Vijay Kumar Sekhn
4.9 & 4.7 of GLB Order (87650 Equity earlier held as a Mominea
Shares @ ¥10/ Each Fully Paid UP of Tinna Overseas Limited.
{Mr. Vijay Kumar Sekhri held as a Nominee)
876,500
SCHEDULE C (i) | ICICI Car Loan Transfer to Mr. Vijay Kumar '
Sekhri or others & Mr. Anil Kumar Sekhri or
others as per para 4.4 of CLB Order :-
ICICI Car Loan DL-2CM-7700 Mercedes {2003) 504,145
ICICt Car Lean DL-2CM-7096 Mercedes (2003) 604,607
ICICIt Car Loan DL-3CY-4580 BMW (2007) 1,619,699
2,728,451
{ii} ICIC! Car Lean Transfer from Duraflex
Services & Construction Technologies Limited -
s per Para 6:-
ICICI CAR LOAN DL 7CF 5033 Honda
Accord (2007) 1,013,874
1,013,874
SCHEDULE “D" Vehicles/ Car Transfer to Mr.Vijay Kumar
Sekhri or others & Mr. Anil Kumar Sekhri or
others as per 4.4:-
DL-2CM-7700 Mercedos(2003) 2,184,920 | Assets Reduced to Nil as
DL-2CH-7096 Mercedes(2C03) 2,056,146 | per Balance Shest.
DL-3CY-4580 BMW (2007) 2,486,614
DL-2FER-7000 Honda Accord (2004} 1,073,851
DL2FGD-0030 Honda CRV (2005) 1,088,309
| 8,889,850
I Less Loans vide Schedule "C"-(i) 2,728,451
6,161,399
|
VYehicle/Car transfer from Duraflex Services &
Construction Tech. Ltd. As per Para 6:-
DL 7CF 5033 Honda Accord (2007) 1,623,958 | Assets Incorporated and
DL30AA 7506 Honda Accord (2004) 924,622 | depicted of valu# in balance
| 2,548,580 | Sheet.
Less Loans vide Schedule “C"-(ii) 1,013,874
1,534,706
SCHEDULE "E” Investment Transfer as per Para 4.1.1 to 4.1.6
(As per Para 4 8):-
Tinna Finex Lid. (Elfected T4,93,94,4U9/-) 45,513,665 | (100%) (Qty. 9102713
@ ¥10 Each)
Tinna Agro Industries Lid. 70,723,015 | (100%) (Qty.7071925
@ T10 Each)
| Duraflex Services & Construction Technologies {100%,) {Qty. 743250
| L, & 210 Each}

7,432,500
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Gautam Overseas Ltd. 9,006,700 | (50%) Qty.80067
@ T 100 Each)
indo Solutions P, Ltd 201,500 | (20%;) ( Qty.20000
@ 10 Each)
Indo Enterprises P Lid. 3,000,000 | (20%) ( Qty.30000 @ %10
L | Each+ 90 Premium)
Total 135,877,280 |
SCHEDULE “F(-e)| Loans & Advances as per Para 4.2.1;-
Advances / Loans to Subsidiaries:-
Tinna Finex Limited {Loan A/c) 56,448,861 | Loans & Advances written
Duraflex Services Construction Technoigies off and be adjusted
Ltd. 42,239,179| with Reserve & Surplus.
Other Advances:-
Vedant Overseas Ltd. 2,018,517
; 100,707,557
Advance Recoverable in Kind of Cash:-
M. Anil Kumar Sekhri Imprest A/c 922 439
Mr. Vijay Kumar Sekhri imprest Alc 43,100
M¥ Raman Sekhri 325,404
101,998,500
SCHEDULE Tol Jatropha Nanded Unit transferred Deemed to be transterred
{As Per Para 4.8 Under Detail 4.3 13,200,000| in VOL (Vedant Overseas
Limited).
13,200,000
SCHEDULE “B” Net adjusted amount as per CLB Order 254,825,973

3. Investments include :
i) Advance for Shares include :

a) M/s B.G.K.infrastructure Dev.(P) Ltd. ¥1,72,00,000/-

b) M/s Feraili Wines (P} Ltd.

T 52,00,000/-

{Advance & applied during-
Financial year.2009-10)

(Advanced & applied during
Financial year 2009-10)

All atoresaid investments are confirmed & pending allotment. Such advances are considered as unguoted
investments.

5. I

Loan and advances include interest free advance of ¥ 13.10 Lacs to Ms. Monica Kanungo.

The disclosure required under Accounting Standard 15, “Employee Benefits™ (Revised) notified in the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules 2008, are given below:-

Defined Contribution Pl

Contribution to Defined Contribution Plan, paid during the year is as under:-

Empioyer's Contribution to Provident Fund
Empioyer's Contribution to Famity Pensicn Fund

{Amount in %)
11,16,964/-
25,35,234/-
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Defined Benefit Pian
Gratuity

The Employee's Gratuity Fund Scheme managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India is a defined
benefit plan. The present value of cbiigation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projecied
Unit Credit Methed, which recognizes each period of services as giving rise to additional urnit of employee
benetit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

(Amaunt I %)
Sr. No |Particulars Gratuity 2009-10 Gratulty 2008-09

a) Change In Present Value of Defined Benefit

Chligations

Defined Banell obiigation as on 01.04.09 25,68.301 22,44,738

Currafit cost 8,17.762 669,840

Interest cost 2,04,901 1.57.132

Acluarial (Galn/Loss) (4,40,978) (3,468,377

Benefits paid {1,29,058) (1,57,132)

Detined banalits obligation as on 31.03.2010 3,020,830 26 688,301
b) Change in fair value of pian assets

Falr valua of plan assats as on 01.04.2008 s =

Expectad return on plan assats acwarial (Gain/loss)

Employer ContributionBenedits paid = 5

Fail value of plan assets as en 31.03.2010 3 d

Actual retum on plan assts 2 -
c) Recancliiation of fair value of assets and obligations

Fair vatlue of pian assets as at 31% March 2010

Presant value of obligabons as al 31 March, 2010 - -

Amourt recognizad in the balance sheet 30,20,930 25 BA, 301 ‘
d) Expenses recognized in profit & loss account |

Currant garvica cost 8,17.462 6,689,940

Interast cost 2,04 801 1.57.132

Expected ratumm on plan assais - -

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss (4,40,976} (3.46,377)

Net cost 5,81,687 4,80,695
e) Investment details

L.1.C. group gratuity policy = -
f) Actuarial assumptlon LiC (1994-26) LIC{1904-98)

Mortality table 8% 7%

Digeount rate (per annum) 0% 0%

Expected rate of return an plign assals (per annum) 5% 4.50%

Rate of escalation in salary (par anpum)

|

Tha estmates of mie s escalatlon n salary’s considered in actuarial valation and other factors such as
fialion senianty, promotion and other relevant factars including supply and demand in the amployment
mirkat have baen taken o account. The above iniormation is certified by the actuary.

The companys public issie of 21,623,800 equity shares of ¥ 10/~ each for cash at a premium ol T 85 par
share aggregating to 12,055.42 lacs and fmm allotmant of 1,50,000 equity shares of 10/ each lor cash
al & premium ol 100/ par share aggregating to ¥ 165.00 lacs 1o NAPs/OCE's opsned for subscription un
20th Mizroh, 1885 was oversubiscribed. Aliotment was made on 28rd May 1995 and alleiment maoneay /
final call was mads on 27.05.98, Amoun recaivable on account of calls in amedrs have bean apporiioned
batwesn share capital and shame premium dccount in the mbio of one to sight.

Calls In arrears are subject o reconcliaion and confirmation, however no Interest has been providad
theraon.
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12.

FDR's T 1,04,66,130/- (Previous Year 71,02,53,411/-) including accrued interest, are charged against bank
guarantees and same are under the lien of various bankers

The company had a policy to account for revenue expenses of Jatropha (Tuljapur) unit as miscellaneous
expenses pending capitalisation and to be capitalised on completion of project. Howeves, company has opted
1o consider the same as part of fixed assets and considered the same capital expenditure pending allocation
in the financial statements.

Computation of net profits in accordance with Section 198 of the Companies Act, 1956 in respect of commission/
remuneration payable to Chairman:

{Amount in ¥)

31.03.2010

Profit before Tax 4,61,14,766/-
Add: Depreciation as per Books 98,38,121/-
Managerial remuneration to Chairman & Directors 52,16.000/-
Loss on sale of Fixed Assets (Nat) 8,68,586/-
Donation 3,11,584/-
Provision for doubtfui debts 50,000/-
6,23,99,067/-

Less: Depreciation as per Section 350 of the Companies Act, 1956 98,38,121/-
Profit on sale of investment/shares 35,95,700/-
Net profit for the year _4,89,85,246/-

RemuneratioryCommission paid to Chairman and directors determined by Board of Directors is ¥ 52,16,000/-
(Amount in )

21.03.2010 31.03.2009
i) Remuneration/ commission paid to directors 46,40,000/- 65,94,017/-
Provident Fund 5,76,000/- 2,77,000/-

ii) The company has adequate profits to pay remuneration by way of salary, bonus, perquisites,

commission and other allowances to director, managing director and chairman, therefore computation
of net profit in accordance with Section 349 of the Companies Act, 1956 is not applicable to the
company.

Related Party Disclosure:
As per AS — 18 issued by ICAl, the Company’s related parties and transactions with them are disclosed as
under
(A} Enterprises that control or are under cemmon controt
Under same management w/s 372A of the Companies Act 1956

. M/s Tinna Viterra Trade Pvt.Ltd.
(Amount in ¥)

Nature of Transaction Current period Previous year
RECEIPTS

- Rent/Electricity charges 3,96,063/- —
- Interest 74,438/ —
Outstanding balance at the end of the year:

Receivables 33012/- —

(B} Enterprises that are associates of the company or in respect of which company is an association: NA

(C) Key management personnel and their relatives ::

. Sh. Bhupinder Sekhri whole time Direclor
. Sh. Kapil Sekhri whole time Director
. Sh. Gaurav Sekhri Director
. Sh. D.PL.Nanda Director
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14.

16.

. Smt. Shobha Sekhri Executive

. Smt. Pooja Sekhri - Executive

. Smt. Aarti Sekhri Executive
{Amount in T)
Nature of Transactior Current Year Previous year
Remuneration / Salary 72,32,000/- 1,20,11,217/-

{d) Enterprises over which key management personnel is able to exercise significant influance:

. M/s Gautam Overseas Ltd.

{Amount in )
Nature of Transaction Current period Previous year
Other Income {Rent) —_— 3,60,000/-
Qutslanding at the end of the year.
Recalvables WS 2 92 035/-
Payable — —

Company's main business is with various units of M/s. Indian Qil Corporation Ltd. and M/s, Chennai Petroleum:
Caorporation Lid., Chennai. Company has neither receivad account statements ever since ita business
started with them, nor has reconciled.

(a) In the opinion of the board, the current assets, loans and advances for which company holds oniy the
parsonal security, have realizable value in the ordinary course of business ai least eqgual to tha amaount
at which they are stated.

{(b)  Sundry debtors include:-
Suit for recovery against ONT LTD. was decreed for and in favour of company by way ot judgment
dated 10.08.2005 for T46,82,457 .40 along with interest and costs. The decree is undar axecution
process. The ONT Ltd. has offered § 32,010 USD to the company for the setttement of tha same on
14/07/2010 through the Superior Court of Justice, Cntario. The approval of the sama (2 panding with
company.

{c) Other current assets:-

i) Claim receivable ¥ 2,75 44,112/- from M/s. FC.| and M/s F.E.C for which the company has
filed suits for recovery afong with inlerest @ 12% and Is hopefu! of recovery. However, as per
order of Company Law Board dated 9" June, 2009 with effect from 5™ January, 2009, if any
amount is received, the amount to the extent of 50% will be paid to petitioner viz. Sh Vijay
Kumar Sekhri & others and Sh. Anil Kumar Sekhri & others.

if) Loan and advances includes ¥ 4,51,988/- recoverable from KRAM International (Shoe) for
wilch the company has succeeded in the High court vide Order dated 28.05.2010 against
the order of lower court regarding dismissing of appeal on limitation of periad. The cage is
pending with learned trial court and company is hopeful of recovery

Balance of debtors / creditors, loans & advances are subjsect to reconciliation and confirmation.

Advances 10 others: {Amaunt In )
31.03.2010 31.03.2009

under same management: -
Mova Cements Ltd.
QOutstanding il Ml
Maximum Cutstanding - 2,562,800, 187/
Tinna Vitera Trads Pvt. Ltd.
Cutstanding Nil Nl
Maximum Outstanding 50,66,851 -
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17. The company has requested its suppliers to intimate whether they are reqgistered under “The Micre, Smal!
and Medium Enterprises Davelopment Act, 2006. Pending receipt of intimation from suppliers, the amount
due to the supplier under the said law could be / not determined. However, in view of the management, the
impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act is not expected
to be material,

18, The company has given unsecured foan to M/s Tinna — Vitera Trade Private Limited of ¥ 50,00,000/- on 18/
01/2010 in contravention of Provisions of Sec. 295 of the Companies Act, 1956. The same was recovered
on 04/04/2010 along with interest of ¥74,438/-

19. Segment Information:;

The following table presents segment revenues, results, assets & liabilities in accordance with AS-17
issued by Institute of Chartered Accountant of india.
(Figure in Lacs ¥ )
BITUMEN DIVN. TULJAPUR DIVN. [TRADING ACTIVITY TOTAL
CURRENT |[PREVICUS | CURRENT |PREVIOUS | CURRENT [PREVIOUS | CURRENT (PREVIOUS
PERIOD YEAR PERIOD YEAR PERIOD YEAR PERICD YEAR

SALES INCOME 7410.77 | 5455.62 . - | 8302.73 - | 16713.50|5455.62

OTHER INCOME 106.15 16.56 - - 5 = 106.15| 16.56

TOTAL REVENUE 7516.92 | 5472.18 - - | 8302.73 - 15819.65 |5472.18

SEGMENT RESULT/

NET Profitloss 318.93 872.60 (0.14) 16.68 - 335.61 | 872.46

SEGMENT ASSESTS| 4243.72 | 3062.01 87.28 76,05 = - 4331.00 |3078.04

UNALLOCATED

ASSETS (H.O) 816.06 | 1018.92 - - - = 816.06 |1018.92

TOTAL ASSETS 5059.78 | 4020.83 87.28 76.05 - = 5147.06 |4096.98

SEGMENT

LIABILITIES 951.92 474.67 2.77 3.92 - = 954 .69 | 474.67

UNALOCATED

LABILITIES 1695.44 698.63 - - - - 1695.44 | 698.63

TOTAL LIABILITIES | 2647.36 | 1173.30 2.77 3.92 - - 2650.13 |1177.22

DEPRECIATION 98.38 96.01 - - - - 98.38| 96.01

CAPITAL/ASSETS/

EXPENDITURE

(W.L.LP) 642.46 22.76 13.09 44.20 - - 655.55| 66.96

20. Accounting for leases has been done in accordance with Accounting Standard-19 issued ‘by the Institute

of Chartered Accountants of india. The details of lease transactions are as under:-
(a) Finance Lease:
The company does not have any finance lease arrangements.
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21.

22.

{b} Operating Lease:

i Lease rentals recognized as expenses in the profit and loss acceunt tor the pericd

T 14,28,908/- ( T14,25,949/-).

ii. The company has entered into operating leases for factory buildings that are renewable on
a periodic basis and cancelable at cornpany’s option. The company has net entered into sub-

lease agreements in respect of these leases.

il The total of future minimum lease payments under no cancelable leases are as follows:

Particulars

Not later than one year

Later than one year but not later than five year

EARNING PER SHARE:
Particulars

(a) Calculation of weighted average

No. of Equity Shares of ¥10/- each

Equity shares outstanding at the
beginning of the year

Equity shares outstancing at the
end of the year

Weighted Average no. of aqguity

shares outstanding during the year

{b) Net Profit after tax available for
equity shareholders

{c) Basic and dituted earning per share

31.03.2010
12,13,056 /-
17,40,000/-

Current Year

86,52,400

85,64,750

85,64,750

3,35,60,987
3.92

{Amount in T)

31.03.2008
10,66 1444
B, 77,056/

Pravious Year

B8.52,400

85,654,750

86.31,988

87245984

10.11

In accordance with the accounting standard 22 issued by the ICAl, the company is having a daferred tax

liability of T 155.12 lacs {¥169.43 lacs) on timing difference as on 31 March, 2010.

Deterred tax caitulation

Particulars

Deferred tax liabilities on account of: -
Diftarence cf depreciation as

per Companies and Income Tax Act.

Deferred tax asgals on account of: -

Leave Encashment
Gratuity

Bonus & Ex-gratia
Disallowance /S 40(a) (ia)

Total deferred assets/(liabilities)
Less: Provision made (ill last year

Deferred tax asset (liability) accounted
in profit and loss account

As at
$1.03.2010

{1.90,57,781/-)

1,01,803/-
9,90,310/-
4,40,712/-

(1,75,24,956/-)

{1.47.24,319/)

(28,00,637/-)

{Amount in T)
As at
41.03.2009

{1,65,00,300/-)

B8, 466/
B.0% Y78/
312,012/
5,64,325/-

{1,47.24 319/

(1,680,423, 1Z7/-)

22,18,808/-
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23. Auditors Remuneration: {Amount in ¥)
31.03.2010 31.03.2008

Audit fees 5,00,000/- 4,00,000/-

Tax audit fees 1,00,000/- 55,000/~

Other capacities 50,000/~ 49,669/-

Service tax 66,950/ 51,881/

Total 7.16,950/- 5,56,650/-

24. All financial adjustments and effect of CLB order was implemented and incorporate in the financial statement

for the year ending 31* March, 2009, where as the documentation such as transter of shares/ vehicles etc.
are pending execution company is in the process of completion of legal documentation except assets as

per Schedufe C(i) and ‘D’ of Note No.2 of Notes of Accounts.

25, Additional information pursuant to paragraphs 3, 4C & 4D of the part |l of Schedule Vi of the Companies Act,
1956. (as certified by the management).
1}y TUBNGOVER: 241.03.2010 31.03.2009
Unit Qty. Amount (T) Qty. Armount (3}
Bitumen Modifier kg 83,31,570 21,47.43,365 1.75,28,987 42,48,76,200
Soya Doc Yellow 3,64,77,660 £3,02,72 842 —_— _
Modification Charges — 3.88,37,850 5 —— 6,57.27,442
Modified Bitumen 1.51,66,160 37.87,13,083 —_ —_—
Others 10,87,82,774 4,49,57,890
157,13,49,914 54, 55, 61,5632
11} RAW BIA Nl ED: 31.03.2010 31.03.2009
Unit Qty. Amount (I) Qiy. Amount (%)
Natural Asphait Kgs 35,23.120 4,93,50,236 48,91,578 7.22,05,833
Rubber Crumb Kgs. 96,40,487 13,28,27,238 12,122,240 15,87,06,895
Rubber Chemicals Kgs. -— — 90,279 86,80,627
PTS.A Kgs. 2,59,112 1, 22,84,257 1,40,243 80,42.318
Bitumen Kgs. 1,02,18,761 28,50,44,186 14,48,445 3,59,70.558
Others Kgs 26,10,814 5,78,35,561
53,73,41,478 2,88,041 022
1y Pur j ial
MTS. MTS.
Natural Asphalt — —_ 1426051 1,60,21,839
Fine Crumb Rubber 44.000 5,96,200 = -
Soya Doc Yellow 3,62,87,097 82,86,04,732 — —
iV} | ENIN IN
a) OPENING STOCK: 31.03.2010 31.03.2009
Unit Qty. Amount (T) Qty. Amount (X)
iy FINISHED GOODS:
Bitumen Modifier KGS 4,56,973 82,85,341 9,85,523 2,20,00,346
82,85,341 2,20,00,346
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iy WORK IN PROGRESS:

Bitumen Maodifier KGS 1,72,221 35,23,535
(Chemical Treated Crumb Rubber)
35,23,535
b} CLOSING STOCKS:
iy FINISHED GOODS:
31.03.2010
Unit Qty. Amount (%)
Bitumen Madifier Kgs. 50,716 8,111,917
Modified Bitumer Kgs.  1,05,772 29,67,301
37,79.218
i) WORK IN PROGRESS:
Bitumen Modifier Kgs. 3,458 55,389
{Chemically treated Crumb Rubber)
55,389

64,474

Qty.

4,66,973

1,72,221

iiiy LICENCED CAPFACITY, INSTALLED CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION:-

INSTALLED CAPACITY (ANNUAL}):

Bitumen Moditier MTS.
ACTUAL PRODUGTION:

(Period of financial statement)

Bitumen Modifier MTS.

Polymer/Moditied Bitumen MTS.

V) EXPENDITURES IN FOREIGN CURRENCY:

Raw Material
Capital Goods
Fareign Traveling

v) EARNING !N FOREIGN CURRENCY:
Export

VI) VALUE OF IMPORTS AND INDIGENOUS OF RAW MATERIAL AND STORES

A) RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED:

31.03.2010

30,000.0C0

9,010.125

12,792.889

31.03.2010

3,72,73,218
1,51,64,044
3,48,831

12,88,794

12,88.794

31.03.2009
Amount (%)

82,685,341

8:2,85,341

35,23.535

35,23,635

21.03.2009

18,000.004

16,307.300

fAmount in 1)
21.03.2000

7,73,75,083

2,00,666

98,42 482

CONSUMELD:
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Tinna Overseas Limited

(Amount in ¥)
Indigenous 48,19,35,719 21,49,29,358
{Percentage) 89.69% 75.78%
Imported 5,54,05,759 6,86,76,873
{(Percentage) 10.31% 24.22%
B) STORES, SPARES & COMPONENTS CONSUMED:
(Amount in I}
Indigenaus 40,898,652 42,77 020
{Percentage) 100% 100%
Imported Nif Nil
26, The company has not made any remittance in foreign currencies on account of dividend
27. a) Figures for the previous period have been regrouped / reclassified / rearranged wherever necessary.

b} Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.

28. Schedule A to O form integral pan of the Balance sheet as at 31" March, 2010.

Far Rawla & Company
Chartered Accountants
FAN No. 001661N

CAY.P Rawla Rahut Garg
(Partner) (Co. Secretary)
M. No. 10475 M. No ACS 21059
New Detihi

July 29, 2010

Anil Kumar Grover

For and on behalt of the Board of Directors

Bhupinder Kumar

(Director) {Director)
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Tinna Overseas Limited

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDING ON 31-03-2010

(T In lacs) (X In Lacs)
1.4.2009 to 31.3.2010 | 01.04.2008-31 02.2008

A CASHFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

NET PROFITALOSS)AFTER TAX 335.61 ar2as

AND EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS ADJLISTMENT FOA:

DEPRECIATION 96.97 9501

INTEREST PAID 119.48 6422

PROVISION FOF INLOME TAX 97.30 162 2R

PROVISION FOH FET {.55 18,74

FROVISION FOR WEALTH TAX .90 0.08

PROVISION FOR DEFFEHED TAX (WRITTENM BACK) 280 {22 18]

LOSE ON SALE OF ASSETS 12.22 1.77

PROFIT ON SALE OF ASEETS (3.19) (D02}

INTEREST RECEIVED (18.08) {(B.14)

RENT RECEIVED [13.60) {2.80)

PROETT OM SALE OF INVESTMENT [35.85) E

MISC INCOME (25 81) 258 75 (010 30718

OPERATING PROFIT/{LOSS)BEFORE WORKING

CAPITAL CHANGE 594.36 1.179.64

ADJUBTMENT FOR:-

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (883 31§ [2og 50

INVENTORIES 184 82 3.B0

TRADE PAYABLES/ICURRENT LIABILITIES 550,18 257,53

OTHERA CURRENT ASSETS 4.2 [244.34) |B7.18) (104 26

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 350:09 1 O7E.28

DIRECT TAXES PALD {10184} (Vo0

AENT RECEIVED 1363 380

MISC INCOME BE & (61.19) 00 19830}

MNET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES {A) 2B8.83 arE.08
B CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

PURCHASE OF FIXED ASBETS (654.07) (108 .58)

SALE OF FIXED ASSETS 53.40 5.0

PURCHASE OF INVESTMENTS {954.37) {287.80)

SALE OF INVESTMENTS 20400 2400

INTEREST RECEIVED 181 BN

LOAN GIVEN TO OTHERS [iXv ) 182 41

MET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) (1,332.82} [178.62)
C CASHFLOW FROM FINARCING ACTIVITIES:

PROCEEDS FROM LONG TEAM BOAROWINGS 903.76

PROCEEDS FROM LUNSECURED LOAN 470,00 .

INTEREST PAID (116.91) (B4 23y

FEPAYMENT OF LONG TEAM BORROWINGS 127.90) .

AEPAYMENT OF UNSECURED LDAN {320.00) (B6.65)

MET CASH USED IN FINAMCING ACTIVITIES  (T) 809.75 (TIATT)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {(A+B+C) (234,28) 8489

OPENING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 360.79 /0

CLOSING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS | 12855 380.73

For Rawia & Company
Chartered Accounianis

FRAN No. O01881N For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
CAY. P Rawla Rahu! Gerg Anll Kumar Grover Bhupintlsr Kumar
{Partrier) {Co. Secratary) (Birector) {Cirectar)

M. No. 10475 M, Mo ACS 21069

New Delhi

July 28, 2010
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Tinna Overseas Limited

STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 212 OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 1956 RELATING TO SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

1. Name of the Subsidiary TINNA FINEX |DURAFLEX SERVICES
LIMITED & CONSTRUCTION
TECHNOLOGIES LTD.
2  Financiai period of the Subsidiary Companies ended on 30-06-2007 30-06-2007
l
3. Date from which it became Subsidiary 13-66-1994 13-06-1994
+.  (a} No.of shares held by Tinna Overseas Limited. 90,91,313 equity 7.43,250 equity
(Hoiding Company) with its nominees in the shares of shares of Rs.10/-
subsidiary Rs.10/- each each fully paid
fully paid
(b} Extent of interest of Holding Company at the end
of the financial period of Subsidiary 89.50% 78.14%
5. The net aggregate amount of the subsidiary companies
Profit/{Losses) so far as it concerns the members of
the Holding Company.
{a) Not dealt with in the Holding Company's accounts.
()  For the Financial period ended 30th Juns, 2007. (% 2,38.152) (% 53,08,101)
(i) For the previous financial years of the subsidiary
companies since they became the Holding
Company's subsidiaries. {T 1,47,93,485) ¥ 52,70,690
(b} Deait with in Holding Company's account :
(i} For the financial period ended 30th Juna, 2007 Nil Ni
(i) For the previous financial years of the subsidiary
companies since they became the Holding Nit Nil
Company’s subsidiaries.
6. Material change between the end of the Financial Year Equity Share purchased
of the Subsidiary and the Holding Cempany's Financial 27100 @ T 5/- each N.A.
Year.

For Rawla & Company
Chartered Accountants
FRN No. 001661N

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

CAY. P Rawla Rahul Garg Anil Kumar Grover Bhupinder Kumar
(Partner) (Co. Secretary) {Director} (Director)

M. No. 10475 M. No. ACS 20159

New Delhi

July 28, 2010
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Tinna Overseas Limited

BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT AND COMPANY'S GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE

L Registration Details
Registration No.2 7186
Balance Sheet Date 31

Date

il Capital raised during the year (Amount in ¥ Thousands)

Public Issue
NIL
Bonus Issue
NIL

itl. Paosition of Mobilization and Deployment of Funds

(Amouvni i T Thonsands )
Total Liabilities
S20K 12
Somrces of Funds
Paid-up Capital
B353T0
Securcd Loans
1'341'310
Deferred  Tax
1 T515%
Application of Funds
Net Fined Assets
206686

Net Currenl Asscis
170328

IV, Performance of Company {Amount in ¥ Thousands)

Tuwrnover
1571350
Profur f{Loss) Before Tax

41 1.3

(Mease tick Appropriate box + for profit, - for Loss)

Barmngs per Share in ©
252

State Code 55

Right Issue

NIL

Private Placemerit
NIL

Toal Assel
520812

Reserves & Surplu
IR 1607
linsecured Loans
5000

[nvesiments
1347998

Mise. Expenditure

Total Expenditure
15248134

Profit/{ Loss) After Tax
335 5061

Dividend Rais "%
NIL

V. Generic Names of Three Principal Products/Services of Company

(as per monetary terms)
ftemn Code Mo (ITC CODE)
Product Description

lem Code No (ITC CODE)
Product Description

400490000
BITUMEN MODIFIER
nooonnoo
MERCHANDISE [TEMS

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Hahul Gary Anil Kumar Grover Bhupinder Kemar
(Co. Secretaty) {Drirector) (Director)
M. No. ACS21059
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